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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s turnover for the year 2009 was HK$3.1 billion reflecting
a decrease of approximately 30% compared to last year. The Group
registered a loss attributable to shareholders of HK$41.2 million as
compared to a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$55.9 million

last year.

Trading and Distribution Division (WKK Distribution)

The Trading and Distribution Division registered sales of HK$1.15
billion for the year 2009, representing a decline of approximately 41%
compared to 2008, mainly due to the global financial crisis and the
economic downturn, in spite of improvements in the demand for the
industrial products distributed by the Group in the second half of the
year. Down from an operating loss of HK$50.6 million for the first half
of the year, the operating loss for the whole year was HK$25.1 million
as compared to an operating profit of HK$83.9 million last year. The
Division’s operations in Taiwan performed well in the second half of
the year and contributed positively to the results of the Group for the
whole year. The operations of the Division in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Singapore recorded operating losses, whilst the Thailand operations just

broke even for the year 2009.

OEM Manufacturing Division (WKK Technology)

The turnover of the OEM Manufacturing Division was HK$1.9 billion
for the year 2009, reflecting a decline of approximately 23% compared
to 2008, mainly because of the global recession. However, the OEM
Manufacturing Division registered an operating profit for the year,
because orders for the Division in the second half of this year were
more than those for the first half-year, as well as effective cost saving

measures.
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FINANCE

The Group has committed bank and other financing facilities totaling
HK$1,896 million, of which HK$450 million was drawn down as at
31 December 2009. As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s consolidated
net borrowings amounted to HK$112 million and shareholders’ equity

amounted to HK$1,164 million, resulting in a net gearing ratio of 9.6%.

Most of the Group’s sales were conducted in the same currencies as the
corresponding purchase transactions, foreign exchange contracts were

used to hedge exposures where necessary.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There had been no material change in the capital structure of the Group

since 31 December 2008.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a total of 5,568 employees, of
whom 325 were based in Hong Kong, 5,027 in the PRC and 216 overseas.
The remuneration packages of the Group’s employees are mainly based
on their performance and experience, taking into account current industry
practices. Provident fund schemes, medical allowances, and in-house
and external training programs are available to employees. Share options
and discretionary bonuses are provided to employees according to the
performance of the individual and the Group. The remuneration policy

and packages of the Group’s employees are regularly reviewed.

S5

A 45 [ 8 BOSRAT B H At 1o 5 i LT
/BT AAET  RoFEIES A
=t —HEBHEPEWEIVEL T #T - A%
FR —FERET A = HZERAE R
BT o HR AR R
W — AT & - HILFEARALL
#159.6% ©

A 3] RS 103 B 5 DK JE 1 12 ) B 2 R
HALHELT - 0 BRI SLAMNE A 4 UFE T B
[ Ry By -

BRI
HoFR/FETA=ZT—HUR > K ERZ
A SRR S 1 BT O SR )

VVibig

WZEZNLFETZH=T—H REMILE
5,568% 18 B - H 3254 BEA i
i K 21644 BEE S TAE o AGE B £ AR R
B TAFRBL AR - LUK & BT 3 N 1R 11
i E IR BT TR o BR N IB B IR L AR & E
H BT AR B ARG B ERAR S - g
AR MR B 2 A1 7 R B K A 5 ) 2 R i R B o) fé
B I OHE X 45 T Y IR AL AL » ALEE & e
et B 2 B K8 -

5,027 4 &



XPM2+ Reflow Soldering System
Vitronics Soltec XPM2+ Reflow
XPM2+[EI R T &

Yamaha YS24X
ompact High-Speed Flexible Modular
2 A IR RS BE

Yamaha V4 Vision |C Handler



PROSPECTS Ry

In view of signs of economic recovery, though uncertainty still remains, 5 R &SR T PF 5 > MESRADAFAE AN HIEINER >

it is expected that the demand for the industrial products distributed by — FEFE 5 Ay 3B —F —F4ED B 2 T ¥

the Trading and Distribution Division for the year 2010 will be stronger /i 2 T >R AFEE LAF TR Sy o H4b > FAFIAIFE R

than those of last year. It is also expected that the orders for the OEM /& iy S35 T I 5 5T SIS IR R 4E B £ - SR >
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However, because of the escalating workers’ wages in the PRC and the 7+ » 23R R4 ZJE Ty »

Manufacturing Division this year will be more than those of last year.

foreseeable increasing of material prices, the profit margins will be under

tremendous pressure.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank all employees for their continued A< \G# R #E H o b 28808 B B ARLEEL 2

effort, support and loyalty to the Group. B AR > SRR LR A OB o
By Order of the Board TR i

Senta Wong F B

Chairman s

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010 Ty > HE -FEFEZH=+—H
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FMBEBRE

For the year ended 31 December
BETH=1—HIRERE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T i AT i AT T
RESULTS %54%
Turnover % 2E4A 4,641,372 5,011,863 4,538,540 4,442 440 3,095,362
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders
MR EIL R (fsiE) 180,609 250,093 108,523 55,899 (41,245)
At 31 December
iy = Bt el &
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
fisli i ki o ki cam T o0 T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % K i (&%
Total assets &/ A% 2,319,303 2,428,907 2,623,160 2,621,921 2,332,508
Total liabilities £ {5 4448 (1,421,283) (1,295,489) (1,379,578) (1,346,322) (1,100,012)
Minority interest “> U SR 47 (65,788) (73,174) (67,309) (76,664) (68,238)
Shareholders’ funds &5 &4 832,232 1,060,244 1,176,273 1,198,935 1,164,258




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong, Senta, aged 67, began his career in the electronics industry
in 1964. Mr. Wong is a founder of the Group in 1975 and it has been
de-merged from Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited (the “WIH
Group”) in 1989. Mr. Wong is responsible for the Group’s overall
management and formulation of its corporate strategies. He has been a
director and chairman and chief executive officer of the Company since
March 1990. Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong, Vinci and the father-
in-law of Mr. Chang Jui Shum, Victor.

Tsui Ying-Chun, Edward, aged 63, obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Hong Kong and joined the WIH Group in 1982 as
general manager in charge of corporate administration. In 1985, Mr. Tsui
became the general manager and, in 1987, a director of the Group. Mr.
Tsui had extensive experience in broadcasting, trading and manufacturing
before joining the WIH Group. He has been a director of the Company
since March 1990.

Ho Shu-Chan, Byron, aged 65, graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Commerce degree. Mr. Ho had more
than 18 years of extensive working experience with the Inchcape group
of companies as financial controller and general manager prior to joining
the WIH Group in January 1989. He has been a director of the Company
since March 1990.

Kwong Man-Hang, Bengie, J.P. (Aust.), aged 62, is an Executive
Program Graduate of the Graduate School of Business from the Stanford
University and a MBA holder. He was formerly the chief executive
of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (Hong Kong Government
subvented organization) — an independent third party ISO 9000/14000
Quality and Environmental Management System Certification Body.
He has more than 24 years’ senior management experience and has an
impressive track record in the field of computer and electronics industry
with multi-national organizations. Mr. Kwong has fellowships in various
professional institutions, and has been appointed as vice president of the
Institution of British Engineers — England, and Fellow of the Institute of
Directors (Royal Charter) U.K. He has been a director of the Company
since February 1996, a director of WKK Japan Limited since February
1997 and a chief executive officer of WKK America (Holdings) Inc.

since June 2001.
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El-Abd Hamed Hassan, aged 62, joined the Group in 1992. He is
a director and the president of WKK Distribution Limited. Prior to
joining the Group, he was president of Amistar AG a manufacturer of
automated robotics used in electronics assembly in particular the area
of Surface Mount Technology. In 1988 he founded his own consulting
company and worked with Japanese, U.S. and European companies in
the electronics area. Mr. El-Abd holds a BA degree in Journalism and
an MA in International Affairs. He has been a director of the Company
since May 2001.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Hsu Hung Chieh, alias, Andrew Sheu, aged 63, is the Vice-Chairman
and CEO of Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited (“TKK”) since 1981, a
company listed in Taiwan. He has over 32 years of experience in the
high technology equipment trading and manufacturing industry and he
served in TKK as management, specialized in operating and marketing,
for over 25 years. He holds a bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering
from Tatung University in Taiwan. He has been a director of the Company

since January 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lee Chung-Yin, Peter, aged 83, is a practicing doctor in Hong Kong. He
is the vice-chairman of the Sun Hing group of companies and director
of a number of other private companies. He is the Visiting Professor in
the Faculty of Medicine in the University of Birmingham of the United
Kingdom and other major universities and medical schools in China.
He served as the Head of the St. John Ambulance Association, the
chairman of Hong Kong Cheshire Home Foundation, the chairman of
the Hospital Governing Committee of the Cheshire Home, Shatin, and a
member of the Court and Council of the University of Hong Kong, etc.
His past public services include being past-chairman of Convocation of
the University of Hong Kong, past-president of the Hong Kong Medical
Association, founder-president of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians, member of the Basic Law Consultative Committee of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China, past-president of the Confederation of Medical Associations in
Asia and Oceania (CMAAO), past-president of the World Organisation of
Family Doctors (WONCA), and a WHO Consultant in Family Medicine.
He has been a director of the Company since March 1990.
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Ho, John, aged 64, is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong. He obtained
a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London. In 1972, he
qualified as a solicitor and joined a major firm of solicitors. Mr. Ho is a
senior partner of John Ho & Tsui. Mr. Ho was appointed an independent
non-executive director of Wa Ha Realty Company Limited in 1994 and
re-designated as a non-executive director in 2004; and also CEO and
executive director of China Western Investments PLC, a London listed

company. He has been a director of the Company since March 1990.

Tse Wan-Chung, Philip, aged 65, retired from DDB Advertising
Agency Operations in 1997 and remained a member of the Company’s
Worldwide Board until 1999. Mr. Philip Tse has since focused on several
new ventures. He has become involved in marketing consultancy work in
Asia, publishing, property development and management in China, and
has established a management agency, as well as become an art dealer.
At present, Mr. Tse acts as managing agent to one of Hong Kong’s largest
art galleries, BaoQu Tang, which is set to expand in early 2006 to include
exhibition and auction facilities. In addition to his personal business
ventures, he is one of the founders of the Hong Kong Artists’ Guild for
which he has been serving as Chairman of the Executive Committee since
1986. He was also appointed by the Hong Kong Government as a council
member of the Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts until 1999, has
served as a member of the Young Presidents’ Organization since 1976,
and is currently a member of the World Presidents’ Organization. He

has been a Director of the Company since March 1990.

Gene Howard Weiner, aged 73, is president of Gene H. Weiner &
Associates, Inc., a business and technical consulting firm serving the
specialty chemical and electronics industries. The clients of Gene H.
Weiner Associates, Inc. have included several Fortune 100 companies.
He is a founding partner of Quantum Solar Group, Inc., a market research
organization in the photovottaic solar industry. His executive experience
includes that of director and the president of New England Laminates
Co. Inc., a leading supplier of copper clad laminates to the electronics
industry; vice president of sales and marketing of Dynachem Corporation
(now part of Dow Chemical), one of the world’s leading suppliers of
photopolymers specialty chemicals to the electronics industry; and
vice president of marketing of Oxy Metal Finishing, a major specialty
chemical firm. Mr. Weiner is on the Board of Advisors of P. D. Circuits,
Inc., a U.S. company providing computer aided manufacturing, design
for manufacture, test and other shared infrastructure services to the
printed circuit assembly industry, as well as on the Board of Advisors
of Christopher Associates, Inc., a provider of equipment and specialty

chemicals to the U.S. printed circuit industry. He is also a member of the
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Advisory Council of Post University’s MBA program. Post University,
founded over 100 years ago as a business school, is now ranked 18th
among online education providers according to the Online Education
Database (OEDD), a U.S. national resource for online degree programs.
Mr. Weiner has been inducted into the IPC Raymond Pritchard Hall of
Fame, the IPC’s and the industry’s highest award and recognition. He
has been a director of the Company since April 1992.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WKK DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

Ying Yik-Hau, James, aged 49, joined the Group in 1982. He is now
the Director and Senior Vice President of South East Asia of WKK
Distribution Limited. He is responsible for overseeing the day-to-
day operations of WKK Distribution business in all South East Asia.
Besides running the day-to-day operations of our South East Asia
business which includes Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand
and Ho Chi Minh City and Hanoi office in Vietnam, Mr. Ying is also
responsible for the development of our new expansion plans for South
East Asia which includes our new operations in India. Mr. Ying holds a
Diploma in Chemical Technology and has worked for a PCB component
manufacturing company as marketing executive before he joined the

Group.

Chang Jui Shum, Victor, aged 35, joined the Group in 2004. He is now
the general manager of WKK Distribution Limited. He is responsible
for formulating the sales and marketing strategy, and overseeing the
development of new business. Mr. Chang holds a Bachelor degree in
Commerce (Accounting & Finance) from the Monash University of
Melbourne, and MBA from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chang
is the son-in-law of Mr. Wong, Senta and the brother-in-law of Mr.

Wong, Vinci.

Fullwood, Lionel, aged 69, joined the Group in 1997. He is a technical
director and manages the Technical Services for the PCB arena company
wide. Prior to joining the group, he spent 34 years in the electronics
industry, specializing in PCB manufacturing. He has designed,
selected equipment, and been responsible for the design, building, and
management of seven PCB manufacturing facilities in Asia and US.
At the present time he is active in the Institute of Printed Circuits. He
received the Institute’s Distinguished Committee award in October of
2000, 2002 and 2007, as well as the IPC President’s Award for 2003. At
the 2005 IPC EXPO Conference, Mr. Fullwood was appointed General
Chair of the IPC 110 set of committees. Mr. Fullwood holds a B.Sc in
Chemistry and Maths., and an M.A. in Molecular Biology and Polymer
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Chemistry. He has authored or co-authored 36 technical papers and

publications.

To Wan-Sang, Stephen, aged 54, joined the Group in 1979. He is the
general manager for New Product Development. He was the general
manager for WKK Source Electronics (HK) Limited, a joint-venture
with Source Electronics Asia Limited in U.S., mainly, a leader Integrated
Circuit Programming Service. Mr. To has assumed various positions
along the growth of the group. He was the engineering manager of World
Storage Technology, a former manufacturing unit of the group for making
floppy disk drives. He was also the service manager for China, sales
manager for electronic equipment in Hong Kong, director and general
manager for WKK (Thailand) Limited, director and general manager of
WKK Electronics Pte Limited and largely being responsible for marketing
of electronic equipment in various areas. Mr. To was the general manger
for Special Products Group. Mr. To holds an MBA degree from UK, and

a Higher Diploma in Electronic Engineering.

WKK CHINA LIMITED
Yeung Chuen-Hau, aged 62, joined the Group in 1984. He is the director
and general manager of WKK China Limited and is responsible for

marketing the Group’s products and services in the PRC.

WKK ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT LIMITED

Lee Wai-Kong, Johnson, aged 51, joined the Group in 1989. He is the
director and general manager of WKK Electronic Equipment Limited
and is responsible for marketing the Group’s electronic products in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor degree in Science

(Electronics Engineering) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

WKK PCB TRADING LIMITED

Lui Kwok-Chak, Randy, aged 49, joined the Group in 1985. He is a
director and the general manager of WKK PCB Trading Limited and
is responsible for marketing the Group’s PCB products in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Mr. Lui holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical
Engineering and worked in the field of PCB manufacturing before he

joined the Group.
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WKK ENGINEERING SERVICE LIMITED

Wong Man-Sing, Joe, aged 59, joined the Group in 1976. He is a director
and the general manager of WKK Engineering Service Limited. He
holds electronic diploma and has more than 30 years of experience in the

managing and servicing of equipment used in the electronics industry.

TAIWAN WKK DISTRIBUTION CO. LIMITED

Wu Yuan-Chieh, Vincent, age 43, joined the group in 2006, he is
now the general manager of Taiwan WKK distribution Co, Limited
and responsible for marketing the group products on sales & service.
Mr. Wu holds a bachelor degree of St. John’s & St. Mary’s Institute
of Technology in Electrical Engineering. He has experience on PCB
equipment manufacturing, service, application/sales & administration

for more than 16 years.

WKK TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Wong Kwok-Wai, Jacky, aged 52, joined the Group in 1980. He is the
executive director of WKK Technology Limited. Mr. Wong had been
responsible for the Group’s OEM production operation and the marketing
of the Group’s semiconductors products in the early years and is currently
in charge of marketing the Group’s OEM services. He holds a Higher
Diploma in Industrial Engineering. He has been a director of WKK

America (Holdings) Inc. since June 2001.

Wong Lup-Keung, Ben, aged 54, joined the Group in 1996. He is the
director and general manager of Sales & Project Management Department
of WKK Technology Limited. He has extensive industrial experience in
various fields namely, R&D engineering, procurement, operations and
sales & marketing areas etc. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor degree in Science

(Electronics Engineering) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Tse Kai-Lam, aged 61, joined the Group in 1996. He is the general
manager of Operations in PRC Plant of WKK Technology Limited. Mr.
Tse has over 20 years’ manufacturing experience in both computer and
consumer electronics industry. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business

Administration.
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WONG’S KONG KING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chung Yiu Ming, Alvin, aged 62, joined the Group in 2002. Mr.
Chung is the general manager of Human Resources & Administration
Department of the Group. He has more than 30 years extensive HR&A
experience in the industry. Prior to joining the Group, he brought with
him well proven record in various regional multi-national organisations
such as Ampex, Digital Equipment, Data General and National
Semiconductor, etc. Mr. Chung holds a Graduate Diploma in Personnel
Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly
named as HK Technical College). He is the visiting lecturer of the Hong
Kong Management Association, the Hong Kong Productivity Council
and Shengchun University, etc. for over the past 10 years. Mr. Chung
has been served as the Academic Chairman of the Hong Kong People
Management Association (former named as Hong Kong Industrial

Relations Association).

Lam Ka-Mei, aged 41, joined the Group in 2000. She is the company
secretary of the Group. She holds a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration and Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration.
She is an associate member of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
Prior to joining the Group, she has about 15 years’ experience in the

company secretarial field.

TAIWAN KONG KING CO., LIMITED

Liao Hung-Ying, Smale, aged 46, joined the Group in 1990. He is
president of Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited. Mr. Liao holds a Bachelor
of Electronic degree in Electronic Engineering of St. John’s & St. Mary’s
Institute of Technology. He has been a board supervisor for Taiwan

Printed Circuit Association since 2002.

WKK JAPAN LIMITED

Masato Watanabe, age 63, joined the Group in 1994. He is appointed
as Representative Director and the President of WKK Japan Limited
on 1st April 2009. Prior to taking this position, he was a Director/Vice
President of Kysho America Corporation in charge of trading, sales and
corporate administration. He is a Bachelor of Arts degree holder from

Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan.

WKK AMERICA (HOLDINGS) INC.

Bacon Bruce, aged 51, joined the WIH Group in 1986 and transferred
to the WKK Group in 1989. He is the president of WKK America
(Holdings) Inc. Mr. Bacon is responsible for the Sales and Marketing
activities of WKK Technology Limited in North America. He has over

25 years experience in the electronics and computer industry. Prior to
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joining the Group in 1986, Mr. Bacon managed several Customer Service
and Quality Assurance operations for U.S. based companies involved in

the computer industry.

WKK TRAVEL LIMITED

Ho Yim Wai Hing, Helen, aged 51, joined the Group in 1991. She
is general manager of WKK Travel Limited. Mrs. Ho has over 18
years experience in administration. She holds a Diploma in Business
Management. Mrs. Ho is the spouse of Mr. Ho Chi-Kin, deputy general
manager of Wong’s Kong King Holdings Limited.

3 KINGS HOLDING LIMITED

Leung Kam-Fong, aged 68, obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
and a post-graduate Certificate in Education from the University of
Hong Kong. He began his career in technical education and training in
1965 at the Hong Kong Technical College and Hong Kong Polytechnic.
He joined the Vocational Training Council in 1982, founded the Chai
Wan Technical Institute in 1985, upgraded it to Hong Kong Technical
College (Chai Wan) in 1992 and subsequently became Deputy Executive
Director in 1993. In 1995 he was appointed Chief Executive of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals until 2006. In these 11 years Tung Wah experienced
tremendous expansion, and he pioneered the development of a series of
modern Chinese Medicine Specialist Clinics. He was awarded honorary
doctorate degrees from Middlesex University, U.K. and Hunan University
of Traditional Chinese Medicine, PRC and holds visiting professorship
at Hunan and Chengdu University of Traditional Chinese Medicine,
PRC. He has also been appointed Vice-Secretary General of the World
Federation of Chinese Medicine Societies, PRC. He joined the Group in
2007 as executive director and chief executive of 3 Kings Holding Ltd.

to conduct business in healthcare and Chinese medicine.

Wong Vinci, aged 39, is the director and general manager of 3 Kings
Holding Limited. He graduated from University of British Columbia
with a Bachelor Commerce (marketing major) degree. He is a media
personality well-known to Hong Kong and mainland China TV viewers
as a quality presenter with accuracy. He has extensive net-working
experience with the local media and therefore enhances the advertising
and sales promotion of company’s product. Mr. Wong is the son of Mr.

Wong, Senta and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Jui Shum, Victor.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are trading and distribution of
chemicals, materials and equipment used in the manufacture of printed
circuit boards and electronic products and the manufacture of electrical
and electronic products for OEM customers.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 38.

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders, as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company, as at the balance
sheet date, amounted to HK$214,465,000 (2008: HK$185,511,000). In
addition, the company’s capital redemption reserve and share premium
may be distributed in the form of fully-paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EEEHREE

EHGREENALREE - TENFET A
= HARAFE R RO AR MR R
RRERARAET -

FEXEBRTHER
Ao A R EER AT - HEERE AR 2 T
BESEW L5 5y Ty 8 PR DA S5 B B AR K R
T G2 AR G YR G R S R A E
EBRNETEMS -

AR A N 4 70 HR ) o 2 SERRR BLO AT O B
B KM TG -
ES

AEEBE _FTIFET A=+ —HILFE
BN FI8HZ A HAERA -

RS
HRGAERREEE “FTTNRET A
=t HIRFEEZ RS -

f#E
A R A 4R [ BELAR 2 ) 2 fl 2 B G O B
AR MFEL o

ME - BERKE
AL W2 - Bk M S B R
LM ELT -

TR BF

&N
AR A AR 2 A IO A5 T AR B i 2 B R
29

EIRES T

Ay \) A A UR T R 2 M R E B R

— JUN—4E N R AR A\ 2 A w AR

NG R = BT I o = el

214 ,465,0000 ( —FF/\4F it %185,511,000
o BLA > AR H) 2 B AR A A B B0 vk

1%3@'&5%&&%1%2%%&%% °

BErBER

AR ) 2 ) AR BT R ik ) 4 T AT B
AR ] A JE A BUAT I AR 2 AR I B A9 1 1 4 4
BB 2 T R BLE -



RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 34
to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 10 to 11.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
approximately HK$1,547,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

39% of turnover and 24% of purchases during the year were attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers respectively. 11%
of turnover and 8% of purchases during the year were attributable to
the Group’s largest customer and supplier respectively. None of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Senta Wong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui

Byron Shu-Chan Ho

Bengie Man-Hang Kwong

Hamed Hassan EI-Abd

Non-Executive Director
Hsu Hung-Chieh

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Peter Chung-Yin Lee

John Ho

Philip Wan-Chung Tse

Gene Howard Weiner

In accordance with Bye-laws 103 to 105 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui, Mr. John Ho and Mr. Gene Howard Weiner shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for election.
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The term of office for each Independent Non-Executive Director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2009, the interests or short positions of the Directors
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
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The Company AN ]
Total
Interests
Total (including
Interests underlying
as % of shares)
of the issued as % of the
shareof ~ Underlying  share capital
capital ~ Shares (share MR A
Personal Family Corporate Other Total HERR AL options) (BHH R
Name Interests Interests Interests Interests Interests He#t HHBR g ) 45
k4 i AR KIEHER Tl i Jfbhizs HRAs  BkE2 (BchE)  BAT AR
% %
Senta Wong 4,000,000 1,572,000 122,012,723 207,800,000 335,384,723 45.36 - 45.36
T (Note ) (Note 2)
(Hf7t1) (Hf7£2)
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 4,577,920 - - - 4,577,920 0.62 3,000,000 1.03
Byron Shu-Chan Ho 2,470,000 360,000 - - 2,830,000 0.38 3,000,000 0.79
e
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 3,150,000 - - - 3,150,000 043 2,250,000 0.73
Rt
Hamed Hassan EI-Abd 750,000 - - - 750,000 0.10 2,250,000 0.41
Hsu Hung-Chich 2,314,000 - - - 2,314,000 031 750,000 041
FiZAS
Gene Howard Weiner 330,000 - - - 330,000 0.04 450,000 0.11




Notes:

122,012,723 shares were registered in the name of Wonder Luck
International Limited, which was wholly owned by Senta Wong (BVI)
Limited. The entire issued share capital of which was 50.25% owned by
Mr. Senta Wong and 49.75% owned by his wife, Ms. Wong Wu Lai Ming.
The references to 122,012,723 shares deemed to be interested by Mr. Senta
Wong (as disclosed herein) and Senta Wong (BVI) Limited (as disclosed
in the section headed “Interests of substantial shareholders”) relate to the

same block of shares.

207,800,000 shares were registered in the name of Rewarding Limited,
which was wholly owned by Greatfamily Inc. (which was in turn wholly
owned by Greatguy Inc.) for a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Senta
Wong and Batsford Limited were regarded as the founders (by virtue of
the SFO). The references to 207,800,000 shares deemed to be interested by
Mr. Senta Wong (as disclosed herein). Greatfamily Inc. and Greatguy Inc.
(as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of substantial shareholders™)
and Batsford Limited (as disclosed in Note 1(a) under the section headed
“Interests of substantial shareholders”) relate to the same block of

shares.

Certain Directors held qualifying shares in certain subsidiaries of the

Group on trust for the Company or other subsidiaries of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors

of the

Company or his associates had any interests or short positions in

the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of

its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)

as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the

SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) which came

into effect from 30 May 2005, disclosed in accordance with the Rules

governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) is as follows:

(0]

()]

3

O]

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Eligible Participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company
with a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to utilize
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group
and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are

or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme
The Board may at its discretion grant options to any director
(whether executive, non-executive or independent non-executive)

or full-time employee of any member of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
and % of issued share capital at 31 December 2009

The number of share issuable under the share options granted
under the scheme was 16,960,000 shares representing 2.29% of
the issued share capital at 31 December 2009.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme
The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless it is approved
by shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. Any share
options granted a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or to any of their associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are subject to

shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company.
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The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

An Option may be exercised as specified by the Board in relation
to such option in its terms of grant which shall not be earlier than
1 year after its date of grant, nor be more than 10 years from its

date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

According to the share option scheme of the Company, no option
can be exercised within 1 year after its date of grant unless
otherwise determined by the board of directors of the Company.
In addition, options will vest as to 25% on the first anniversary of
its date of grant and as to the remainder on the second anniversary

of its date of grant.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option

HK$10.00 is payable by the each Eligible Participant to the
Company on acceptance of options within 21 days from the Offer
Date.

The Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price must be at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Date of Grant which

must be a business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant;
and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme will expiry at the close of business on 29 May
2015.
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SHARE OPTIONS B ERTE

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 30 7423 7 i ICRERH ) 2 FE 0% O R 45 & I 5 &
to the consolidated financial statements. Movements in the Company’s Bt 530 o A A4 B4 > A2\ &) i B b 2 5 )

share options during the year are as follows: T
Outstanding
Outstanding at 31
at1l December
January Cancelled/ 2009
2009 Granted  Exercised lapsed during RZFFNA
Date of Exercise Exercisable Vesting REZBNE during during the year +ZA
Grant Price Period Period —HA—H  theyear the year A Zﬂ’@ =1—H
g Tt fite L WREHE  RERSN ORENTE RB/RE WK
Category 1:
Directors 5
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 22.7.2005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
fIEE H0.56 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Byron Shu-Chan Ho 2272005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
fiTiik #0560 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 22.7.2005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
B #0561 217.2015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Hamed Hassan, 22.7.2005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
El-Abd HR0.567 21.7.2015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Hsu Hung-Chieh 2272005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
AR #0561 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 750,000 - - - 750,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Gene Howard 22.7.2005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
Weiner %056t 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 450,000 - - - 450,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Total for directors 11,700,000 - - - 11,700,000
WO R
Category 2:
Bm=
Employees 22.7.200 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
[E& #0561 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 4,532,000 - - - 453,000
2172015 21.7.2007
26.9.2005 HK$0.59 26.9.2006- 26.9.2005- 50,000 - - - 50,000
HH0.59% 25.9.2015 25.9.2006
26.9.2007- 26.9.2005- 678,000 - - - 678,000
25.9.2015 25.9.2007
Total for employees 5,260,000 - - - 5,260,000
[ Bt
Total for all categories 16,960,000 - - - 16,960,000

Ve bR




INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has been notified that, as at 31 December 2009, persons
(other than Directors of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were

as follows:

FERRzEHS

AN FHEEA > R FRIFEF A=+
H o> AR I SO B 1583361k T LA B A 2
et zaisk - AL (BRA L A E SN it
AR ) A7y AR B B 4 v A R A IR

Long positions in shares of the Company ARG
Percentage of
Name of substantial Number of total issued shares
shareholders Capacity shares held 1 AT ey
FHEBORAH 54 i ¥y It MEH N
%
Batsford Limited Founder of discretionary trust 238,413,332 32.25%
and trustee (Note 1)
W5 FE 2 L N RZFEN (MfFET)
Greatfamily Inc. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 207,800,000 28.11%
ZVETE 2 Wi (B aE2)
Greatguy Inc. Trustee (Note 2) 207,800,000 28.11%
ZREN (KfFt2)
Senta Wong (BVI) Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 122,012,723 16.50%
ZHE I 2 A AE3)
Wong Chung Yin Beneficial owner, interest of child or 69,697,251 9.43%
T spouse and founder of
discretionary trust (Note 4)
BN~ T R R
[P WWNG i,
HSBC International Interest of controlled corporations 47,066,952 6.37%
Trustee Limited ZHEHLE 2 Mt
LIM Asia Arbitrage Fund Inc. Beneficial owner 36,988,000 5.00%
Ha A A
Notes: B -
1. Batsford Limited was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested 1. TRYE S W B &6 > Batsford Limited 847

in 238,413,332 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the

following capacity:

(a) 207,800,000 shares were registered in name of Rewarding Limited,

which was wholly owned by Greatfamily Inc. (which was in turn

wholly owned by Greatguy Inc.) for a discretionary trust, of which

Mr. Senta Wong and Batsford Limited were regarded as the founders

(by virtue of the SFO). Please see Note 2 under the section headed

“Interests of Directors”.

Ty A AN H1238,413 332 iy 2 W45 > 7%
WA T LR R AT -

(a) 207,800,000/ JIX #> LARewarding Limited
2 %38 > %A H )5 H Greatfamily
Inc. (HHGreatguy Inc. 2&H#EA) /518
P A5 RCIMT 2 G HEA > 1 A Se A K
Batsford Limited 4556 5 K & W9
WA RIS T 2 O N - 52 Al #
Mg | iR 2 o



(b) 30,613,332 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited (which
was in turn wholly owned by Batsford Limited) for a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Yin was regarded as the founder (by
virtue of the SFO). The references to 30,613,332 shares deemed to
be interested by Batsford Limited (as disclosed herein), Mr. Wong
Chung Yin (as disclosed in Note 4(c) below) relate to the same

block of shares.

2. Please see Note 2 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.
3. Please see Note 1 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.

4. Mr. Wong Chung Yin was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in
69,697,251 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the following

capacity:

(a) 3,500,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin personally.

(b) 2,000,000 shares were held under the name of Mr. Wong Chung
Yin and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming.

(c) 30,613,332 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited (which
was in turn wholly owned by Batsford Limited) for a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Yin was regarded as the founder
(by virtue of the SFO). Please see Note 1(b) above.

(d) 33,583,919 shares were held for The Pacific Way Unit Trust, of
which Guardian Trustee Limited was regarded as the beneficiary
(by virtue of the SFO). Mr. Wong Chung Yin was regarded as the
founder of the trust (by virtue of the SFO) in relation to the same

block of shares.

Save as disclosed, the Directors are not aware of any other persons who,
as at 31 December 2009, had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
of the Company is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 30 to 35.

N
=1t

W
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company had been entered
into or existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates
to acquire benefits by acquisition of shares or underlying shares in,
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to the Company
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Annual Report,
the Company has complied with the public float requirements of the
Listing Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2009.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Shinewing (HK) CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company on 27 August 2008 and PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed
on 27 August 2008 as auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy.
PricewaterhouseCoopers will hold office until the conclusion of the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Senta Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group. The
Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions™) as set out in the
CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009 complied with most of the Code Provisions and
certain deviations from the Code Provisions in respect of code provisions
A.2.1, A4.1 and A.4.2, details of which are explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors. One of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors process the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules. The directors, as at the date
of this report, are Mr. Senta Wong, Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui, Mr.
Byron Shu-Chan Ho, Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong, Mr. Hamed Hassan
El-Abd, Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh, Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee, Mr. John Ho,
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse and Mr. Gene Howard Weiner.

The biographical details of the Directors (including relationship among
the members of the Board) are set out on pages 12 to 19 of this Annual

Report.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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The Board met four times in 2009 to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and to consider and approve the annual budget
for the Group. Individual attendance of each Board member at these

meetings is as follows:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 3/4
Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 4/4
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho 4/4
Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 4/4
Mr. Hamed Hassan El-Abd 4/4
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee 3/4
Mr. John Ho 4/4
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 4/4
Mr. Gene Howard Weiner 4/4

Other Board Meetings with the attendance of senior management were
held regularly during the year to discuss the day-to-day management
and administration as well as the recent business development of the

Group.

All minutes of the Board Meetings are prepared and kept by the
Company Secretary and open for inspection by Directors upon

reasonable notice.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by

the same individual.

The Company does not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Senta Wong currently holds both positions. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning and execution of long
term business strategies. The Board also believes that the Company
already has a strong corporate governance structure in place to ensure
effective supervision of management. Such a structure provides many of
the benefits of having a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

The structure includes:
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- Having the Audit Committee composed exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- Having the Remuneration committee composed exclusively of

Independent Non-executive Directors;

- Ensuring that Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s external and internal
auditors and independent professional advice where considered
necessary.

The Board believes that these measures will ensure that our Independent
Non-executive Directors continue to effectively supervise the Group’s
Management and to provide vigorous control of key issues relating
to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes, including the separation of the positions of

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, are necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors of the Company is appointed
for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1
of the CG Code. In accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws of
the Company, any Director appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first annual general
meeting immediately following his/her appointment. Further, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office. The directors to
retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s

corporate governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the next
following annual general meeting after their appointment, and every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject

to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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According to the Bye-laws of the Company, all Directors (except
Executive Chairman or Deputy Chairman or Managing or Joint Managing
Director) of the Company are subject to retirement by rotations and re-
elections at the annual general meeting of the Company at least once
every three years. This constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As
continuation is a key factor to the successful implementation of any long-
term business plans, the Board believes that, together with the reasons
for deviation from Code Provision A.2.1, that the present arrangement is

most beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2005. The
Committee now comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,

who are:

Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee

The Committee was set up to consider and approve the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and share option
scheme. The Committee also reviews the structure, size and composition
(including the skill, knowledge and experience) of the Board from time
to time and recommends to the Board on appointments of Directors and

the succession planning for Directors.

The Committee met once in 2009. Individual attendance of each

Committee member at these meetings is as follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 1/1
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee 01
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 171
In Attendance:
Executive Director
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho 171

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. All Directors
of the Company are responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board succession,
with a view to appoint to the Board individuals with suitable experience
and capabilities to maintain and improve the competitiveness of the

Company.
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Following recommendations by individual Directors, the Board
considers the professional background, experience and track records of
the relevant candidates. The Board also considers the recommendations
from the management team and other individuals who know the
candidates. Subsequently, the Board meets to discuss the nominations
and if appropriate, approve the appointment of the relevant candidates

as Directors.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Auditors of the Group received
approximately HK$2,593,000 for audit services and HK$207,000 for tax

and consultancy services.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Committee now

comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, who are:

Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee

A written terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which clearly
defined the role, authority and function of the Audit Committee, has

been adopted by the Group.

The Audit Committee met two times in 2009. Individual attendance of
each Committee member at these meetings is as follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee 172
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 2/2
In Attendance:
Finance Director 2/2
External Auditors 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements with
management and the Company’s External Auditors, and recommended

its adoption by the Board.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i) overseeing
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group with a view to
ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and (ii) selecting suitable accounting policies and
applying the selected accounting policies consistently with the support
of reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates.
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A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set

out on pages 36 to 37 of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and operating an
effective system of internal controls. Group Internal Audit was established
for many years to provide independent assurance to the Board and
executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls for the Group. The head of Group Internal Audit reports directly
to the Group Chairman and the Group Chief Financial Officer.

Group Internal Audit adopts a risk-and-control-based audit approach.
The annual work plan of Group Internal Audit covers major activities
and processes of the Group’s business and service units. The audit plan
is reviewed and agreed by the Board. In addition to the agreed schedule
of work, Group Internal Audit conducts other review and investigative
work as may be required. All audit reports are communicated to the Board
and key members of executive and senior management. Audit issues
are tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with progress

reported to the Board, executive and senior management periodically.

During the year, Group Internal Audit conducted reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls over financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management functions and
reported their findings to the Board. After a review of the accounting
period ended 31 December 2009, the Board did not become aware of any
areas of concern that would have an adverse impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the internal

control systems to be effective and adequate.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established its own website (www.wkkintl.com) as a

means to communicate with the shareholders.

The Company communicates with the shareholders mainly in the
following ways: (i) the holding of annual general meetings which provide
an opportunity for the shareholders to communicate directly to the Board;
(ii) the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases of
the Company providing updated information of the Group; and (iii) the

availability of latest information of the Group in our website.

The chairman of the annual general meeting and the chairman/member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee were
available at the annual general meeting held on 20 May 2009 to answer

questions from the shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

BARBMBES

BRI KEGETEIEHFR

S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S KONG KING INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
Kong King International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 136, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT SHtREE
BE - BENET A=t —HIEERE

For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
“EFME e =292
Note HK$°000 HKS$’000
{iF BT BT T
Revenue A 5 3,095,362 4,442,440
Other income H-Ath I 7 7 2,981 382
Raw materials and consumables used JL A4} K UL 8y F 11 6 (1,613,597) (2,039,078)
Purchases of finished goods i 5 R A f (814,063) (1,375,317)
Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in progress $4 i S AE 1 i AE 18 2 5 ) 15,781 (74,003)
Other manufacturing overhead Hth 8% B 57 (69,496) (100,872)
Employee benefit expense {& 5 4 Bl 3% 9 (412,417) (492,479)
Depreciation and amortisation 3785 5 #E5 (60,456) (64,265)
Other expenses HAt B 32 (162,463) (166,248)
Operating (loss)/profit #64% (f518) % F 8 (18,368) 130,560
Finance income fll &I A 11 3,856 16,272
Finance costs il & AL A< 11 (8,290) (27,530)
Finance costs, net il & 54 » {F(E 11 (4,434) (11,258)
Share of results of an associate FT i — [H] B /A 7] 2 2645 19 (867) 633
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 5 H:[F] 42 il B .~ 3545 20 - (556)
Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities H} #5 3 [7] 4% il B 8 g 4 - 1,646
Allowance for doubtful debt on amount due from
a jointly controlled entity JE I — ] 3 [R] 448 i) B il K TH 2 R BRAEA (708) (944)
(1,575) 779
(Loss)/profit before income tax FxF 3 BLRT (F8) @A (24,377) 120,081
Income tax expense T 158 32 1 12 (11,849) (42,875)
(Loss)/profit for the year A4ERE (FH) /#H (36,226) 77,206
Attributable to: HEJ& :
Equity holders of the Company Z<2% &) AR A 13 (41,245) 55,899
Minority interest /> &/ R4 5,019 21,307
(36,226) 77,206
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/ profit
attributable to the equity holders of the
Company during the year
AR AR VI EHER A AN AL O1R) il 2 0k OksiR) %A
(expressed in HK cents per share) (DA% sl £371)
— basic FEA 14 (5.58) 7.57
— diluted #f# 14 (5.55) 7.49
Dividends & 15 - 11,090

The notes on pages 46 to 136 are an integral part of these financial 2546 2 25136 E & B sE Al AL M &5 A RS W £ 2 —

statements. %Ig/\ o



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET EHEEERBR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2009 —EZEJUET A= +—H
2009 2008
ZERFAE TR\
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 w0 T
ASSETS & &

Non-current assets JF ifi B & &

Land use rights 1 Hu{# 16 15,470 15,831
Property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 ~ /5 K5 17 579,672 626,796
Intangible assets fEF & 2 18 13,066 7,810
Interest in an associate — [ %52\ &) HEZE 19 2,847 3,633
Interests in jointly controlled entities &[] 42 fil B B M 45 20 988 914
Amount due from an investee company fEW— ] Z G A F 2 FHIH 22 - 1,444
Deferred tax assets Z 1L JH & 7 23 9,655 1,808
Available-for-sale financial assets 7] fit 8 4 il % 2 24 33,218 33,286
Long term deposits = 444 1,973 1,973
Club membership and debentures € %% J & 7% 11,795 9,498
668,684 702,993

Current assets i B & &
Inventories 17 & 25 470,761 461,944
Trade and other receivables & % S FAth JE i iz 3k 26 845,432 826,231
Deposits and prepayments %4 & TE A 5 H 52,132 40,320
Tax recoverable A it 2l Fi I 1,645 8,222
Derivative financial instruments fi74E 4 il T.E 27 - 615
Bank balances and cash #4745k K B4 28 293,854 581,596
1,663,824 1,918,928
Total assets & & S {H 2,332,508 2,621,921

LIABILITIES £i{g
Non-current liabilities JE i B £1 &

Bank borrowings — due after one year $R17 1 £ — it —4FAZ £ HA 32 - 18,000
Obligations under finance leases — due after one year

Pl R BR A — i — AR AR 2 ) 33 318 484
Deferred tax liabilities & SEF H £ 15 23 1 1,012
Retirement benefit obligations EARAE R AR 34 793 2,618

1,112 22,114




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

EHEERBER(EA)
SEENET A=A

2009 2008
“EZEhE TRE A
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5E W T ki N
Current liabilities ¥ 3 £1 &
Trade, bill and other payables
BTy MEATHRER ~ MEAT EE95 S HA R AT 3K 35 686,540 661,866
Current income tax liabilities RIHIH1 JE & /& 5,303 20,175
Bank borrowings — due within one year S5 & — it —FREL 32 402,087 631,455
Bank overdraft, secured $R17%5 % — L&A 32 3,553 10,496
Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year Fill & FH & 7K I — it —4F (A 21 1 33 153 187
Derivative financial instruments 745 4 @l T =2 27 1,264 29
1,098,900 1,324,208
Total liabilities £1{# 44 % 1,100,012 1,346,322
EQUITY JitHE
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s
equity holders
ARy w) I RE R N AN AR % fils o
Share capital It 29 73,930 73,930
Reserves fififfi 1,090,328 1,125,005
1,164,258 1,198,935
Minority interest % 8% AU 25 68,238 76,664
Total equity JitHE 48 %0 1,232,496 1,275,599
Total equity and liabilities JItHE & £1 {8 44 %A 2,332,508 2,621,921
Net current assets ¥ BY % 7 & i 564,924 594,720
Total assets less current liabilities ¥ 2 48 (i I i B £ 1 1,233,608 1,297,713
Senta Wong A
Director HF
Byron Shu-Chan Ho ] g 43¢
Director EE

The notes on pages 46 to 136 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

BEEARER
SEEAET A=A

2009 2008
ZERJAE TR\
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E T T
ASSETS % &
Non-current asset JE i B & &
Investment in subsidiaries [ft &/ Fl#% & 21 394,602 353,036
Current assets i B & &
Prepayments T8 {7 #H 81 226
Tax recoverable R Yi [a] i JE 23 21
Bank balances and cash R17 %5 % M I 4 28 337 343
441 590
Total assets & /i 48 {5 395,043 353,626
EQUITY /B
Capital and reserves attributable to
the Company’s equity holders
Ay ) R RE A N A B AS % 1t o
Share capital &4 29 73,930 73,930
Reserves fififfi 31(b) 306,402 277,448
380,332 351,378
LIABILITIES £if&
Current liabilities ¥i ) £ {&
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE1T B & 2 7 #IE 21 14,083 1
Accruals and other payables M 7122 i K HAth B A7 Bk 3k 35 628 2,247
14,711 2,248
Total equity and liabilities Bt & £ {& 48 5 395,043 353,626
Net current liabilities i B £ & 55 (14,270) (1,658)
Total assets less current liabilities & & 48 {1 3% 7% B £ % 380,332 351,378

Senta Wong
Director

Byron Shu-Chan Ho
Director

The notes on pages 46 to 136 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2009

aOGRERER

WEELNEL A=+ —HIEFE

2009 2008

ZERELE R\

HKS$’000 HK$’000

b3 T T

(Loss)/profit for the year ZA4EFE (1), #Fl (36,226) 77,206
Other comprehensive income: J{t 4% & U % :

Currency translation differences & ¥ 5= 48 8,343 (7,519)

Total comprehensive income for the year 7 4F Ji 3 & W #5 48 % (27,883) 69,687

Attributable to: & :

Equity holders of the Company A/ Al BEHERR A A (34,677) 50,442

Minority interest "> B M 15 6,794 19,245

(27,883) 69,687

The notes on pages 46 to 136 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2009

SOERSBR

WE_EZNFET_H=1T—HILFEE

Minority
Attributable to equity holders interest
of the Company S
A2 T e RERE AN TR Bt 3 HE £
Other
reserves
Share (Note31(a))  Retained
capital  FMUGEH  earnings Total
oA (Hzk31)  REREM Fki)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
T BT w% T BT BT
Balance at 1 January 2008 2% \4— 1 —H 2 &k 73,610 119,615 983,048 67309 1,243,582
Comprehensive income %7 75 W £
Profit for the year A4F & i | - - 55,899 21,307 77,206
Other comprehensive income Fflt 4% 7 i £
Currency translation differences BRI 2 - (5,457) - (2,062) (7,519)
Total other comprehensive income b7 2 e £ 8% - (5457) - (2,062) (1,519)
Total comprehensive income % 7 i #5 44 4% - (5.457) 55,899 19,245 69,687
Transactions with owners SR HH HZ R 5
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options
O R B 7 320 1,323 150 - 1,793
Share options lapsed during the year
T RCHE AR N KK - 9 9 - -
Capital contribution from minority shareholders
DEIRR TS - - - 922 922
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
SR 1/ Pl ¥:) - - - (10812)  (10,812)
2007 final dividend —ZFZ-H4AEK MR - - (18,483) - (18,483)
2008 interim dividend %% /\FErh % & - - (11,090) - (11,090)
Balance at 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
REZZZFNEFZAZF—HRZZFAE—H—H2ZE R 73,930 115472 1,009,533 76,664 1,275,599
Comprehensive income %7 75 W £
(Loss)/profit for the year A<4F i (J&18) /i Fl - - (41,245) 5,019 (36,226)
Other comprehensive income L {43 £ 1 45
Currency translation differences & i 5. 2 4 - 6,568 - 1,775 8,343
Total other comprehensive income A7 A it £ A48 - 6,563 - 1775 8,343
Total comprehensive income % A i & 44 - 6,568 (41,245) 6,794 (27,883)
Transactions with owners S HH HZ R 5
Capital contribution from minority shareholders “> £ # 1 & - - - 1,767 1,767
Dividends paid to minority shareholders 3 fif > Bl 3 2 Jit & - - - (16987)  (16,987)
Balance at 31 December 2009 R —ZZNEF A=+ —HZ &k 73,930 122,040 968,288 68,238 1,232,496

Note:

As at 31 December 2009, included in retained earnings are statutory
reserves of HK$38,626,000 (2008: HK$32,926,000). These statutory
reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these funds are
determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant subsidiaries in
accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan.

The notes on pages 46 to 136 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT EHEESREREK

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BEEZZNFEL A=ZT—HIEE
2009 2008
“EFNE TEREINAE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
{iF BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities 8B EFE 22 HEH &
Cash generated from operations s TS 4 36(a) 28,888 274,416
Income tax paid ELAJ FrfGf (22,359) (31,052)
Tax on dividend declared by subsidiaries [ &/ 7 & Ik 2 RS 2 BLH (6,643) (4,109)
Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities K8 2E%5 (1) /rE LB G A 114) 239,255
Cash flows from investing activities # & B 2 B & &
Interest received & WFS 3,856 16,272
Dividends income from available-for-sale financial assets
AT A 2 LS 2,981 382
Capital injection to jointly controlled entities 7] H[m] 2 il B i 14 & - (965)
Advance to jointly controlled entities A T[] 42 i £ (782) (2,309
Repayment from jointly controlled entities 3 [F] 4% il B # #2 3K - 1,621
Proceed from disposal of jointly controlled entities
H B ) 2 o A TS O - 3,245
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [ 54 2% ~ W5 M ki (16,745) (45,346)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
VI - RS B T AR 36(b) 3,935 1,766
Proceed from advance from an associate 5% B — B /2 7] 2 B4R T 15 20H 2 -
Repayment from an associate — [H] /A ] 2 %2 3K 5 11
Additions of intangible assets s & JE & (5,907) (7,810)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term time deposits % A7FEY,~ (Bh1) 250,271 (294,822)
Increase in long term deposits = HAF% 434 - (1,973)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
B EL, () Bl 237,616 (329,928)
Cash flows from financing activities B & G B2 B & &
Dividends paid BB 5 - (29,573)
Interest paid £ F 5 (8,290) (27,530)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders 7 {7 /) B 3 > i 5 (16,987) (10,812)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings JH7 4 $R 17 fir & P 15 3K H 79,184 301,873
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share upon exercise of share options
A 6 P WA B S 1 0 S T 75 IR - 1,793
Repayment of bank borrowings & &R 7 (& (326,552) (98,000)
(Decrease)/increase in obligations under finance leases
AR RS () 1 (200) 227
Capital contributions from minority shareholders of subsidiaries
WHE o Fl D BOBOR 2 1 1,767 922
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities
SRS (T AR (271,078) 138,900

The notes on pages 46 to 136 are an integral part of these financial ~ 546 B & 55136 E 2 Bt 5 #§ AU 55 MA S e R 2 —

statements. HBAY o



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT EHREREBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BEEZZNFEL A=ZT—HIEE
2009 2008
SEEAE CEENE
HK$°000 HK$°000

W T BT

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Be RBEEHEER D) i (33,576) 48,227
Cash and cash equivalents as 1 January & — H — H Z Bl KB 45 (H 1A H 276,278 237,386
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ 2R 5 B 5/ 2% 3,048 (9,335)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Bt ZA=t R 2B e ABESSEER 245,750 276,278

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents {4 K& 3 4 % (5 JH B 4 Hr

Bank balances and cash $R17 458k M B 4 249,303 286,774
Bank overdraft, secured #1735 32 — A & (3,553) (10,496)
245,750 276,278

The notes on pages 46 to 136 are an integral part of these financial 5546 E{ % 55 136 B 2 Mt 51 #f BU UL 5 P B ¥ 6 2 —

statements. ii%as



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s Kong King International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of chemicals,
materials and equipment used in the manufacture of printed circuit
boards and electronic products and the manufacture of electrical

and electronic products for OEM customers.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11
Bermuda and its principal place of business is 23/F, One Kowloon,

No.1 Wang Yuen Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 31 March 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value

through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New Standards and amendments to Standards that
are effective in 2009 and have been adopted by the
Group:

o HKAS 1 (revised) “Presentation of financial
statements”. The revised standard prohibits
the presentation of items of income and
expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in
equity’) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to
be presented separately from owner changes
in equity in a statement of comprehensive
income. As a result, the Group presents in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity
all owner changes in equity, whereas all non-
owner changes in equity are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Comparative information has been
re-presented so that it also is in conformity
with the revised standard. Since the change in
accounting policy only impacts presentation
aspects, there is no impact on earnings per

share.

. HKFRS 7 (amendment) “Financial Instruments
— Disclosures”. The amendment requires
enhanced disclosures about fair value
measurement and liquidity risk. In particular,
the amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair value
measurement hierarchy. As the change in
accounting policy only results in additional
disclosures, there is no impact on earnings per

share.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments”. HKFRS
8 replaces HKAS 14, ‘Segment reporting’.
The new standard requires a ‘management
approach’, under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purposes. There are no
further impacts on the measurement of the

Group’s assets and liabilities.

Amendments to Standards and interpretations to

existing Standards that are effective in 2009 but do

not have significant impact to the Group:

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing costs”

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 (Amendment),
“Puttable financial instruments and obligations

arising on liquidation”

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 (Amendment),
“Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly

controlled entity or associate”

HKEFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share based payment”

— Vesting conditions and cancellation

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2  FEGIBURME (4)

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HREEE ()
(b)  (Continued) (b) (#H)

HK(IFRIC)-Int9 (Amendment), “Reassessment
of embedded derivatives” and HKAS 39
(Amendment), “Financial instruments:

Recognition and measurement”

HK({IFRIC)-Int 13, “Customer loyalty

programmes”

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15, “Agreements for the

construction of real estate”

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16, “Hedges of a net investment

in a foreign operation”

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 — Transfer of assets from

customers

The first annual improvements project to
HKFRSs issued in October 2008 by HKICPA,
except for amendment to HKFRS 5
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©)

Amendments to or new Standards that are not effective (c)

in 2009 and have not been early adopted by the

Group:

HKAS 24 (Revised)

FisatERI245% (BT)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

Fis aRHERE2T (BT)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
FikgRHEE (B0

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
FisaHERI305 (B

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

BB RIAE 198 (B

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

B RATE R 258 (1)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

S BRI S3 58 (1847

HKFRS 9

B PR RS9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

B (IR B R A S - R 145
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17
(R RE RS - 2BE17H
HK(FRIC)-Int 19

i (R RRZ A ) - REEH19%

2.1 HRRERE (A)
i =TT JUAE R AR i
7 A o] 7 R R A 2 Y

EEGEBORBE ()

ZAE B EORTRT A

Related party transactions

CEINR Y]

Consolidated and separate financial statements
AR S BT R

Classification of rights issue

B

Eligible hedge items

A EHRHMIER

Additional exemptions for first time adopters
HRRAE 2B

Group cash-settled share-based payment transaction
SHB LA RA TS

Business combinations

LD

Financial instruments

SRIH

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement
RILE SR E 2 B HH

Distribution of non-cash assets to owners
EEZINNE 3 54T

Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments

DUBCA T EAE S & (R

Effective for annual periods

beginning on or after
IV B k2 #
il 6 2 AE IR A 3

1 January 2011
“F—f—-A—H
1 July 2009
“EEAFLA-T
1 February 2010
“E-REAA
1 July 2009
“FFNELA—H
1 January 2010
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1 January 2010

“E- R
1 July 2009
“FFNELA—H
1 January 2013
il
1 January 2011
“E—f-J-H
1 July 2009
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1 July 2010
“E-FELA-H



2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 T EGEIEEBE (4)

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HRREERE ()
(d) HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS (d)y A s A A & A U B RS
e Rl 2 P

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of the HKICPA’s
first annual improvements project to HKFRS has
been published in October 2008 and HKICPA’s
second annual improvements project to HKFRS have
been published in May 2009. These improvements to
HKFRS have introduced certain amendments to those
standards set out below. These amendments are not
effective in 2009 and have not been early adopted. The
Group is assessing the impact of these amendments.
The Group will apply these amendments from their

effective dates.

o HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of

financial statements”

3 HKAS 7 “Statement of cash flows”

o HKAS 17 “Leases”

D HKAS 18 “Revenue”

. HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”

o HKAS 38 “Intangible assets”

. HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition

and measurement”

. HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(d)  (Continued)
. HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”
. HKFRS 8 “Operating segments”
o HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 “Reassessment of embedded
derivatives”
o HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 “Hedges of a net investment
in a foreign operation”
. HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Leases — Determination of
the Length of Lease Term in respect of Hong
Kong Land Leases”
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made

up to 31 December.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated

income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are

eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Interests in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
interests in associates includes goodwill identified
on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment

loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised

in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2.3

24

(c)

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has unilateral

control over the economic activity.

The equity method of accounting has been adopted
and accordingly, the consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the results of jointly
controlled entities for the year, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the group’s share of the net

assets of the jointly controlled entities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,

who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the broad of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying

amount are recognised in equity.

Translation difference on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are included

in the exchange reserve in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement

are translated at average exchange rates; and

(iii)  allresulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at

the closing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs
are charged in the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives at the

following annual rates:

Buildings 2.5% — 5%

Medium-term Over the terms of
leasehold factory the lease
premises

Machinery and equipment 15% —20%

Leasehold improvements, 15% - 20%
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles 15% —25%

Moulds 50%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for land use rights are
accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease, or when there is impairment, the impairment is

expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible asset

(a)  Technical know-how
Technical know-how is shown at historical cost.
Technical know-how has a finite useful life and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of technical know-how

over its estimated useful life of 7 years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.7 Intangible asset (Continued)

(b)

Internally generated product development cost

Cost incurred on development projects (relating to the
design and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following

criteria are fulfilled:

(1) it is technically feasible to complete the
development projects so that it will be available

for use or sale;

(ii) management intends to complete the

development projects and use or sell it;

(iii) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible

asset;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

(v)  adequate technical, financial or other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset are available; and

(vi) theexpenditure attributable to the development
projects during its development can be reliably

measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded
as intangible assets and amortised from the point at
which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis

over its estimated useful life.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates,
jointly controlled entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entities is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of

the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.1 Classification (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘long term deposits’,
‘amount due from an investee company’, ‘trade
and other receivables’ and ‘bank balances and

cash’ in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the

balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2  FEGHBURME (&)
(CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

29 SRR ()

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement 292 fER R E

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date — the date on which
the group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. The translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount
are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
and non-monetary securities classified as available-

for-sale are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement. Interest on available-for-sale
securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.10 Impairment of assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the group uses to determine that there

is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;
. A breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

. The group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the

lender would not otherwise consider;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

. The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;

or
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(CONTINUED)
2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

FEREFHBORBER (47)

2.10 &EEZ WAL (4)

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (a) VIR AR G (4E)
. Observable data indicating that there is a . B E RS - BY)

measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the

portfolio, including:

(1)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio;

(ii)  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets

in the portfolio.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s

fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised

in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
debt securities, the group uses the criteria refer to (a)
above. In the case of equity investments classified
as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the separate consolidated income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through

the separate consolidated income statement.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the

resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is

designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of

item being hedged. Derivative instruments held by the Group

do not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for

at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value of

these derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge

accounting are recognised immediately in the consolidated

income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress
comprises materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,

less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current

assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short — term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown in current

liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of

tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16

217

2.18

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,

they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2  FEFIBRTEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.18 P B MBS P 45 B (4

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension schemes.
The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered
funds, determined by periodic actuarial calculations.
The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Group pays
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of services and

compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect
of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet
date less the fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating

to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive

income in the period in which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
income, unless the changes to the pension plan are
conditional on the employees remaining in service
for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In
this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a

straight-line basis over the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund

or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by

reference to the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions; and

. excluding the impact of any non-vesting

conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any

directly attributable transaction costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of

time is recognised as interest expense.

The Group records warranty provision at the time of sale
for the estimated costs that will be incurred under its basic
limited warranty. The specific warranty terms and conditions
vary depending upon the product and the country in which
it was sold, but generally includes technical support, repair
parts and labour associated with warranty repair and service
actions. The period ranges from one to three years. The
Group reevaluates its estimates at each balance sheet date
to assess the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities

and adjusts the amounts as necessary.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts

and after eliminating sales within the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue

can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic

benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have

been met for each of the Group’s activities as described

below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results,

taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the

related receivables is reasonably assured.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised on an accruals
basis in accordance with the substance of relevant

agreements.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the respective

services are rendered.

Ticketing and touring income

Income from tour and travel services and other travel
related services are recognised when the services
are rendered. Revenue from sale of air tickets are

recognised when the tickets are delivered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.22 Leases

(a)

(b)

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other short-
term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the

asset and the lease term.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is

recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements

in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company’s shareholders.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair

value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses

derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures

on changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest

rates where necessary.

(a)

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

As most of the Group’s sales were conducted in
the same currencies as the corresponding purchase
transactions, and foreign exchange contracts were
used to hedge exposures where necessary, the
monetary assets and liabilities of the Group were
substantially hedged against each other and therefore,
no significant foreign exchange risk exposure is

noted.

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash and time deposits held at bank,
the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets.
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market

interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings.
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (Note
32). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s HKD
borrowings. At 31 December 2008, the Group hedged
part of the cashflow interest-rate risk through interest
rate swap, which fix the interest rate of the notional
principles amounted to HK$200,000,000. The Group
did not use interest rate swap to hedge its cashflow

interest-rate risk exposures in 2009.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, if interest rates on borrowings
had been 25 basis points (2008: 25 basis points) higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax
loss for the year would have been HK$1,015,000
higher/lower (2008 post-tax profit: HK$1,627,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower

interest expense on floating rate borrowing.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade
and other receivables and deposits with banks and
financial institutions.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
has implemented internal control procedures for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
Group generally requires customers to pay a certain
amount of deposits when orders are made. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate allowance on impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2009, 29% (2008: 35%) of the
Group’s total trade receivables comprises receivables

from top five customers.

The Group manages its credit risk by dealing with
credit worthy customers. Credit risk is managed by a
credit evaluation process which includes assessment
and evaluation of existing and potential customers.
In addition, for certain export trades, the Group
obtains provision of insurance protection against non-
payment risks arising from commercial and political
event through purchasing insurance from Hong Kong
Export Credit Insurance Corporation.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trading business, to lower the Group’s exposure
to credit risk, the Group may request 90% deposits
and delivery payment from certain of their customers

upon delivery of equipments.

The Group believes that adequate provision for
doubtful debts has been made in the consolidated
financial statements. To the extent that information
is available, management has properly reflected
revised estimates of expected future cashflows in their

impairment assessment.

The Group has placed its cash in reputable banks.
Management does not expect any losses arising from

non-performance by these banks.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with

loan covenants.

Currently, the Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds
generated from operations and bank borrowings.
As at 31 December 2009, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$1,445,865,000 (2008: HK$1,379,600,000).
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3.1

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BA ¥ R B 45 42 )
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 R Fx}z El ? (#)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) B EZME S
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFEII AL @ Z R Al
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For BEEGHENMAE - BIENA
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been EREEmNS - TR 3"' i
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of ZIK;.’E: [ RE R E R R 2
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which RA#, Demams ik Eﬁ
the Group is required to pay. The table includes both RS WEFR - FROH
interest and principal cash flows. HIFLE B T BB i o
Group A4 Within
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
—EN —EW4F MEHE At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T T BT
At 31 December 2009
VERENFEFZAZT—H
Trade, bill and other payables 653,371 - - 653,371
B 5 RERTIRSR - AT SRR
FoA HEAT R
Bank borrowings (include interests) 402,961 - - 402,961
HUTIEE (HEFIE)
Bank overdraft 3,553 - - 3,553
FATIEL
Obligations under finance leases
(include interests) 168 330 - 498
Al R RIS (A5
Derivative financial instruments 1,264 - - 1,264
Ttk LR
1,061,317 330 - 1,061,647
At 31 December 2008
REFFNFEFZA=+—H
Trade, bill and other payables 597,168 - - 597,168
B O AT IR AT S0 K
HA AT HR K
Bank borrowings (include interests) 640,529 18,124 - 658,653
HUTIE R (RAEFIE)
Bank overdraft 10,496 - - 10,496
SATIESL
Obligations under finance leases
(include interests) 207 183 327 717
P E A R IE (RS
Derivative financial instruments 29 - - 29
Pt e TR
1,248,429 18,307 327 1,267,063
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3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 WEREEEERE )
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WMEEREEEE)
(¢)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) B G2 ()
Company A% ¥ Within
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
—HER — R MERAE At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
Nokioa i BT i Ty ok
At 31 December 2009
LA ESE
Other payables
HAEAFHR K 628 - - 628
At 31 December 2008
N S L
Other payables
Hop AT R 2,247 - - 2,247
Capital risk management 3.2 AR R

3.2

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for the Company’s shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets

to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by shareholders’ equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less short-term

time deposits and cash and bank balances.
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3.2

3.3

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 WS E)
Capital risk management (Continued) 32 HEARBFEE )
The net gearing ratio at year end is as follows: R FEARAMRLRMT -
2009 2008
ZEFIAE SET\AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
b TH T
Total borrowings i S48 4A 406,111 660,622
Less: bank balances and cash i : S8R4T 45 % K 34 (293,854) (581,596)
Net debt fE75 13 112,257 79,026
Shareholders’ equity % HHE £ 1,164,258 1,198,935
Net gearing ratio {3 & 4% & fif lL 3R 9.6% 6.6%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AP
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade B o) MEWUHR K T & 5 e AR iRk

receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the amendment
to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in
the balance sheet at fair value, this requires disclosure of
fair value measurements by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (thatis, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived

from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The financial instruments that are measured at fair value as
at 31 December 2009 represent forward foreign exchange
contracts of HK$1,264,000 which are classified under
level 2.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.

(a) Depreciation
The Group’s net carrying values of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2009 was approximately
HK$579,672,000 (2008: HK$626,796,000). The Group
depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of 2 to 40 years and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method, at the rate 2.5% to 50% per
annum, commencing from the date the property, plant and
equipment are placed into productive use. The estimated
useful lives that the Group places the property, plant and
equipment into productive use reflects the directors’ estimate
of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s property,

plant and equipment.

(b) Estimate impairment loss of trade receivables
The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional allowances may

be required.

LN CHEHPS]

AT B 30 AR 508 1 A B S HLAB R R (1
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(a)

(b)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis at
each balance sheet date, and makes allowances for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for sales. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such finished goods based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at each balance sheet date and makes

allowance for obsolete items.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, property,
plant and equipment and available-for-sale financial
assets

Investments in subsidiaries, property, plant and equipment
and available-for-sale financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to

take an impairment charge to the income statement.

Provision for warranty

Warranty provision is based on the estimated cost of
provision warranties when sale is recognised. Factors that
affect the Group’s warranty liability includes technical
support, repair parts and labour associated with warranty
repair and service actions. The period ranges are depending
upon the product and the country in which it was sold and
the estimation is reviewed on an on-going basis and adjusts

the amounts as necessary.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(f) Income tax
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in

the period in which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relates
to tax losses, depends on the management’s expectation of
future taxable profit that will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual

utilisation may be different.

5 REVENUE
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold and services provided by the Group to outside customers, net
of return, allowances, discounts and sales related taxes. Revenue/

turnover recognised during the year is analysed as follows:

4
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2009 2008

“EENE CEFINE

HK$’000 HKS$’000

W T T

Sales of goods # 8 F14) 3,032,478 4,369,957
Commission income {435 9,953 18,578
Service fee income MH5E Ui zd 50,473 52,543
Ticketing and touring income 275 [ ik 7 i % 1,183 1,097
Others HiAth, 1,275 265

3,095,362 4,442,440




SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Chief Operation Decision-Maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as directors of the Company. CODM reviews the

Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and

allocate resources. It has determined the operating segments

based on these reports. The Group is currently organised into two

operating segments — trading and manufacturing. These segments

are the basis on which the Group reports its principal activities

information.

Trading -

trading and distribution of chemicals,

materials and equipment used in the

manufacturing of printed circuit boards

and electronic products

Manufacturing -

products

manufacturing of electrical and electronic

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2009

are as follows:

Zigidegis

TEEERRE ([ EREERRE ) #
MERAANFIES - FREHERKEF
Bi A SR B 2 R o ARl SR S
TC R o % S R M AR 0 B K
I8 o ASE B B 23 1 v 8 K 40 8 — B
oy BB o AL 2 T R

P LA SR 73 5 S FEBAE o

Ho —  BUEER AR R T A
P I Z AL B &~ Wk s
(PP E L

Wik — EARETEMZ W

WA EENEA ] S R
2 ERE

Trading Manufacturing Others Eliminations Consolidated
®5% B HoAts il Ba
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ki T ki T LT Lt T T
Revenue 1A
External sales /18 & 4 1,148,821 1,900,896 45,645 - 3,095,362
Inter-segment sales 735 A 85 £ 4 171,757 2,320 19,802 (193,879) -
Total ZE%H 1,320,578 1,903,216 65,447 (193,879) 3,095,362
Results 3
Segment results 7P (23,716) 11,821 (6,473) - (18,368)
Finance (costs)/income, net
BE (BA) /A - FHE (1,401) (3,038) 5 - (4,434)
(25,117) 8,783 (6,468) - (22,802)
Share of results of an associate
Bt — B Rl 2 5 (867)
Allowance for doubtful debt on
amount due from a jointly
controlled entity
JRE g — T ) 42 B R
LRI (708)
Loss before income tax & T {5t A 5 10 (24,377)
Income tax expense T3 32 i (11,849)
Loss for the year 7~4F [ 516

(36,226)



SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2008

5 HRE B (A7)

WEFF T A= B

are as follows: ZaTERn
Trading  Manufacturing Others Eliminations Consolidated
55 B Bl 8 B
HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T BTG ki i ki i T
Revenue A
External sales S 4 1,945,171 2,453,618 43,651 - 4,442,440
Inter-segment sales 73 /A 85 £ 4 261,208 2,312 17,423 (280,943) -
Total A% 2,206,379 2,455,930 61,074 (280,943) 4,442,440
Results 34
Segment results 7 3£ 4 83,636 68,313 (21,389) - 130,560
Finance income/(costs), net
ERA (RA) > FE 263 (11,975) 454 - (11,258)
83,899 56,338 (20,935) - 119,302
Share of results of associates
Pt 2 vl 2 5 633
Share of results of
jointly controlled entities
URIESEEET RS b (556)
Gain on disposal of
jointly controlled entities
e ] 2 2 1,646
Allowance for doubtful debt on
amount due from
a jointly controlled entity
JRE S — [ 4 ) 2 ) e O
2RI (944)
Profit before income tax
W i 2550 Al i ) 120,081
Income tax expense T 381 3 (42.875)
Profit for the year Z<4F- it F 77,206
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 are as

6 IrEEMR ()
RoBEE LA S B2

follows: EEAEENT -
Trading Manufacturing Other Consolidated
85 Bk BN} it
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
BT BT T T T
Assets & #
Segment assets 435 & 7 814,494 1,414,585 103,429 2,332,508
Liabilities £ fi
Segment liabilities 43 £ fif 436,956 640,174 22,882 1,100,012
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008 are as W EFENFET A Z T —HZ A
follows: EHARENT
Trading Manufacturing Other Consolidated
85 Bk BN} ey
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
BT T T T BT
Assets & &
Segment assets 73 H5 & 2 759,506 1,761,021 101,394 2,621,921
Liabilities £1 1%
Segment liabilities 73 & £ 1 293,918 1,022,236 30,168 1,346,322




SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the Group’s capital expenditure, depreciation and

amortisation by segments is as follows:

SR RL (AH)
ASE L5y B 0> L EABSE I K
S AT

Trading Manufacturing Other Consolidated
E5 L3 Jfie Ha
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
R T T T T oo
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BWEFZNET A=+ —HILFE
Capital expenditure &A% BH 37 10,581 3,726 2,438 16,745
Additions of intangible asset % Bl & £ 5,907 - - 5,907
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Wik ~ s M i e 11,847 42,959 4,638 59,444
Amortisation of land use rights
~F o o RS - 361 - 361
Amortisation of intangible asset
Y 651 - - 651
For the year ended 31 December 2008
WEZZ/\EL A= HIEEE
Capital expenditure & 4<BH 32 13,969 29,522 1,855 45,346
Additions of intangible asset 7% B T & & 7,810 - - 7,810
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Wik ~ Rs B s i s 12,899 46,206 4,723 63,828
Amortisation of land use rights
—F o f S - 437 - 437
Amortisation of intangible asset
HETY W — ~ N -

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue originated
from Hong Kong, Mainland China and other countries are
HK$2,472,027,000 (2008: HK$3,644,286,000), HK$450,277,000
(2008: HK$379,032,000) and HK$173,058,000 (2008:
HK$419,122,000), respectively.

The total non-current assets other than intangible assets and
deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and other countries are HK$55,330,000 (2008: HK$60,772,000),
HK$539,552,000 (2008: HK$579,359,000) and HK$51,081,000
(2008: HK$53,244,000), respectively.

Revenue of approximately HK$350,192,000 (2008:
HK$400,235,000) is derived from a single external customer.
This revenue is attributable to the manufacturing segment.

AR T - RAFE - T E
7 b K At Bl A Bl A s
2,472,027,00070 ( — & & )\ AF i W
3,644,286,0007C ) ~ #5 450,277,0007C
(= ZF )\ 1 ¥379,032,00000) &
7 9173,058,0007C ( 2 F AR - I
419,122,0007T) °

{7 o~ F I T b R il B R A R
T A AR (N S Y G R
SiE Bl T E ) 4 Al 5 s 955,330,00000
(= FZ A i ¥60,772,00000) - #
#539,552,0007C ( — & & )\ 4 @ g
579,359,0007C ) K # #51,081,0007C (
FF AR #EH53,244,00000) ©

# A W %350,192,0007C 19 Yk A ZE B
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400,235,0007C) © L% WA Bt JE i s
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OTHER INCOME Al i 25
2009 2008
ZERBIAE TR\
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T T
Dividends from available-for-sale financial assets
AL A i 2 S 2,981 382
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT B2 (BR), sl

Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the

88 (s18) R ISR (GEA)

following G| % AR SR -
2009 2008
“EZFhE ZERENFE
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T oo T T
Auditors’ remuneration 1% %A 4 2,800 2,836
Net write-back of impairment loss on trade and other receivables
158 101 52 55 I JEL At R WA SR . Bl L A 48 T 4 (6,876) (3,370)
Allowance for obsolescence of inventories
e 1,961 2,814
Operating leases rental in respect of land and buildings
T BT 2 R A 17,068 17,181
Net foreign exchange gains R 5i 15 5 15 48 (1,592) (29,237)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
VI - S Bk i 1R 569 1,737
Net fair value loss/(gains) on financial derivatives
i TH 2 A PERSH, 7 (ds) 5 1,850 (586)
Write back of impairment loss on club membership and debentures
$35 0] € B € 5 R R 25 B e 1R (2,300) -
Impairment loss on amount due from an investee company
JEM— [H] 2 B 2 R 2 KIH el (e 1R 1,444 -
Impairment loss on available for sales financial assets
TS Y e A 1 117 -




EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

D B A B S (L9 3 3 I 52

2009 2008
ZEFNE ZERENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
L i T T
Salaries, wages, commission and allowances
B~ T A SR 395,360 472,950
Pension costs — contributions to defined contribution plans (Note (a))
AR IR AR — 1) S Rt (R (T Ga)) 5,944 6,430
Pension costs — contributions to defined benefit plans (Note 34)
AR AR — 1) St 5 A A ) 3tk (M E34) 695 635
Social security costs f1: & i & s A 10,418 12,464
412,417 492,479

(a)

Where there are employees who leave the defined
contribution plans prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions. The amount of forfeited
contributions utilised in this manner during the year was
HK$75,000 (2008: HK$119,000).

At the balance sheet date, there are no significant forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group in future

years.

The total employer’s contribution to the above retirement
schemes and other local arrangement charged to the
consolidated income statement, net of forfeited contribution
amounted to approximately HK$5,944,000 (2008:
HK$6,430,000).

(@)

MR B AE (30 2 R B BB L
HRE B o A A ) AN (b
PR YRR > ARAE B LA 5 U
Z AR WA R 4 s W K7 5,0000T
(ZFF VA - #%#119,0000T) °

AR H > BLE R R B8 R R AR
AT B T 28 A AR A 4 B A R
2R A T B AR 36 TR 2 B O T i f

e
sA ©

f E 3 b R R T B A At
TPE 2 R AR A DR R R
FBR > B R A
#5,944,0007C ( ZFF )N d
6,430,0007C) °



10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

10 535 J 0w A B I <

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) wHME
The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the ARE-FEZNF T+ _H=Z1+—H
year ended 31 December 2009 is set out below: IR AN R #ESE M
Salaries,
wages, Employer’s
commission Performance contribution
and related  to pension
Name of director allowances incentive scheme
HHEA Fee %M - L& -  payments BIK&FHE Total
e ekl KBEE  ZEEMEXK At
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
w¥TE  #%Tx  #%Tx  #% Tk #%Tx
Executive directors #LiT# 5
Senta Wong T LA 100 7,364 - 294 7,758
Edward Ying Chun Tsui {&EH 100 3,675 - 184 3,959
Byron Shu Chan Ho {1 ## 100 3,365 - 168 3,633
Bengie Man Han Kwong B #1f 100 3,324 - 166 3,590
Hamed Hassan EL-ABD 100 2,668 - 110 2,878
Non-executive director JEE1TH
Hsu Hung Chieh (Note)
EY i) 159 782 477 26 1,444
Independent non-executive directors
WAL F AT ES
Peter Chung Yin Lee & 1 & 100 50 - - 150
John Ho i) 100 50 - - 150
Philip Wan Chung Tse #{7 100 50 - - 150
Gene Howard Weiner 100 - - - 100
1,059 21,328 477 948 23,812
Note i

Mr. Hsu Hung Chieh was appointed as a non-executive director of

the Company on 1 January 2009.

RERBSR R FRIE A — AR R
AnaFEPATES -



10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2008 is set out below:

10 #HHRESHFHEME )

(a)

WG (A1)
WEE S FE A A=
LA A T 2 T

Salaries,
wages, Employer’s
commission Performance  contribution
and related to pension
Name of director allowances incentive scheme
HHIES Fee Ml - L&  payments BIk&atH Total
e Mekmil  RBEE  ZREEMK Rt
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
T wWTor wW T W T B%Te
Executive directors £L/T# 5
Senta Wong T Al 100 7,956 1,381 324 9,761
Edward Ying Chun Tsui {}/EF 100 4,109 1,043 205 5457
Byron Shu Chan Ho {i[ff# 100 3,776 1,015 189 5,080
Bengie Man Han Kwong [ e 100 3,562 1,005 178 4,845
Hamed Hassan EL-ABD 100 2,858 226 118 3,302
Independent non-executive directors
AL AT ES
Peter Chung Yin Lee 2= & 100 5 - - 105
John Ho i) 100 5 - - 105
Philip Wan Chung Tse #{7 100 5 - - 105
Gene Howard Weiner 100 - - - 100
900 22,276 4,670 1,014 28,860
No directors waived any emoluments during the years ended P ZE I L EF A
31 December 2009 and 2008. ToA=t—HIEFE > MES
JRCFEAT AT 4 -
Five highest paid individuals (b) FHABEHMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group were executive
directors of the Company for the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2008 whose emoluments were included in Note
10(a).

AREMBE _FTIFER FETN
FEr+H=ZtHIEEEZ AR
FEM A LB A N FRATES
145 2 B R M EE10(a) ©
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FINANCE COSTS, NET 11 BERA > HH
2009 2008
ZREMAE ZEENE
HK$°000 HKS$°000
i T T T
Interest income on bank deposits 171732 FLE YA 3,804 16,251
Others HAth 52 21
3,856 16,272
Interest expense on: Fl 5 37 i :
— bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly repayable within five years
SR AR N R R 2 SRAT B S5 3 (8,261) (26,823)
— finance leases wholly repayable within five years
ZEUA AT TR 76 BB R 2 Al AR (20) (23)
— others H:At: 9 (684)
Total finance costs 4 il & i A4 (8,290) (27,530)
Finance costs — net [l & 4 — F{E (4,434) (11,258)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 Frfabisc il
2009 2008
ZEFME SET )\
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T T T
Current income tax E[/ RT3
— Hong Kong profits tax 7 /158 1,177 5,880
— Other jurisdictions including PRC income tax
H At FEMER > A R 10,846 32,502
12,023 38,382
Under/(over) provision in prior years #F 4 EERHEH A 2 (AR
— Hong Kong 7 ifs 1,995 (380)
— Other jurisdictions including PRC income tax
HoAth FERERL - L35 BT3B 46 80
2,041 (300)
Deferred income tax (Note 23) #E#E Fr 1584 (Fff5323) (8,858) 684
Withholding tax on dividend declared by subsidiaries
LB A R O E IR B 2 MBI 6,643 4,109
11,849 42,875

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits for the year. The subsidiaries
established in the PRC are subject to enterprise income tax rates
ranging from 12.5% to 25%. The subsidiaries in Taiwan are subject
to corporate income tax rate of 25% (2008: 25%). Taxation arising
in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

s A BT DAASAE FE 2 Ak T E SR 6k
AR %16.5% (—FF)NAE  16.5%) 5
o A I BT 2 B S R AR 12.5%
F25%T HEIN TR o A Kt
BN F JEHR25% (. FE A 25%) Bl
AT ISBE o HoA " R R B
TE R A TR ) 3 E Lo 208 ) 2 B RGO
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
applicable in Hong Kong to (losses)/profits of the group companies

as follows:

12 Il (4)

A AL 3] B BT 45 Bl AT (48

) /i B > B IE

B4 T 8 ) Ol 4R) i A1 %2 7 i o
Hﬁ%ﬁ.ﬁr%ﬁzﬂ LK 22 ST

2009 2008
ZFFIE TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T BT T
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (f518) /Al (24,377) 120,081
Tax at domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%)
FEEHBIR16.5% (—FT /N : 16.5%) T H 2 BIIH (4,022) 19,813
Effect of different tax rate of operation in other jurisdictions
Al IR MR 8 7 S5 2 TR B R 2 5 2,148 9,398
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
AN AT B S22 B R 5,258 6,774
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
BB Z BB 8 (3,767) (2,119)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
Y 1 Sl R AR 2 B 15 (365) (1,210)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
AR HERBBLIA e 1 2 B B 4,660 13,651
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
AR SCHI A RS < B 1 (166) (146)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to foreign subsidiaries
e SN 2 W) P AL B T o 2 R (367) (6,410)
Under/(over) provision in prior years
BB, GBI 2,041 (300)
Others Atk (214) (685)
Withholding tax on dividend declared by subsidiaries
LB 2 T B IR IRE 2 AR I 6,643 4,109
Income tax charge {5832 11,849 42,875
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14

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$28,954,000 (2008: HK$15,875,000).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

13

14

A2y W) e R AN AV T A

AN TR AE AT A T8 R i AN 7
B E AN > 4% Lk H528,954,0007T
(BT )\AE #EH15,875,00070) £ IR -

I (ER),BH

(a) A
T IEA (5 18) 8RN T He A A
w) B RE R A N EAG (B4t F
ok DA TR 2 B A 0 4 3 o T 340

2009 2008
SEENE e
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company (Hong Kong thousands dollar)
A8 T RHERFA A HERS (548) ¥ 7 (T o0) (41,245) 55,899
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (thousands)
AT 2 PRSP 2 8 (T 1) 739,304 738,660

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

(Hong Kong cents per share)

TR (R 1R) /B Gl

(5.58) 7.57
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(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

14 FROER), BRI A
(b)

T JBC v (s 12) 7 28R 4% IRk L
A5 FT A VR CE S A R T R R A
TEAN I 38 e 2 I3 st 3

2009
“EEAE

2008
e AN

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

(Hong Kong thousands dollar)

AN F PR RERS AT A REAG (548D A1 B T-70)

(41,245)

55,899

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue (thousands)
B F AT B3 3 (T )
Adjustments for share options (thousands)

U BCHELE Hh SR (T 17)

739,304

3,201

738,660

7,167

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
diluted (loss)/earnings per share (thousands)
FH AT IR (518 &Rl 2
L T 2 B (TR

742,505

745,827

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

(Hong Kong cents per share)
T (1R 2R G RHEAIL)

(5.55)

7.49
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DIVIDENDS 15 BE
2009 2008
“EENE ZREINE
HK$’000 HK$°000
b3 TH e i
Interim dividend, paid of nil (2008: HK$0.015) per share
AR - EATE B E T (CRZE - #%#0.01570) - 11,090
Final dividend, declared of nil (2008: nil) per share
KA E - BEIREGEBRERZ T (—FFNF - BIHEE0) - -
- 11,090

The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

LAND USE RIGHTS
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating

lease payments held in the PRC under leases of between 10 to

16

HERAERRMNBE -FTNET A
Zt—HIEFEZRBIBE -

- Hb £ ] BE
AR 2 A b {5 PR R A £ R AE b I 4 A
HH10ESOFE 2 FAFr A 2 TR R E

50 years. IH o
2009 2008
ZERRIE ZRFINE
HK$’000 HK$’000
i T
At 1 January JA—H—H 15,831 16,268
Amortisation ¥4 361) (437)

At 31 December A+~ H=+—H

15,470 15,831




17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W% > W Kok i

Medium- Leasehold

Freehold term improve-

land and leasehold ments,

buildings factory furniture

in overseas premises  Machinery  and fixtures

#ShKA  inthe PRC and il Motor

E &R B equipment  EH(E vehicles Moulds Total
3 S8 AR EERRE  BEREE it st b

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$000
T W #%Tx W #RTx W T #RTx

Net book value at 1 January 2009

WEZENF—A—HZ IR 35,637 414,082 135,403 33,152 8322 - 626,796
Exchange translation adjustments

SMETE 983 262 148 277 53 - 1,723
Additions 1 & - 1,126 10,853 2735 2,031 - 16,745
Disposals i (2497) (720) (483) (182) (622) - (4,504)
Depreciation % (407) (11,682) (36,544) (1,761) (3,050) - (59.444)
Impairment loss recognised AR (E 517 (1,644) - - - - - (1,644)
At 31 December 2009

REEFNETZA=1—H 32,07 403,268 109,377 28,221 6,734 - 579,672
At 31 December 2009

REZENEFZA=1—H

Cost HiA 46,194 476,468 509,830 111,859 28,339 4,190 1,176,880
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

REHITE RBiE (14,122) (73,200) (400453) (83,638) (21,603) (4,190) (597,208)

Net book value Jft i 1 {H 32,072 403,268 109,377 28,221 6,734 - 579,672




17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 17 3% - Bm Rk (4)

Medium- Leasehold

Freehold term improve-

land and leasehold ments,

buildings factory furniture

in overseas premises Machinery  and fixtures

#IhKA  inthe PRC and filts Motor

FHELR o o equipment  PFEEE vehicles Moulds Total
i &3 AR ESRRH  BEEEE Hd BH ki

HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000
T W #WTx WP #R T W Tr ERTx

Net book value at 1 January 2008

WEZENE—H—H Z R 36,153 408,748 157,746 37,751 6,233 - 646,631
Exchange translation adjustments

MR 87) ) 2,005 (153) 143 - 2,150
Additions 7 & - 16,987 16,033 6,010 6316 - 45346
Disposals % - - (1858) (654) (991) - (3,503)
Depreciation % 428) (11495) (38723) (9,803) (33719) - (63.828)
At 31 December 2008

RZEENEFZA=1—H 35,638 414,082 135,403 33,151 8322 - 626,796
At 31 December 2008

rERNETZASTA

Cost HiA 47361 475,870 525,169 124,022 30,579 4,190 1,207,191
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

BRI B (11,723) (61,588) (389,766) (90.871) (22057) (4,190) (580,395)

Net book value e i 35,638 414,282 135,403 33,151 8322 - 626,796
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

The Group has pledged freehold land and buildings with
total net book values of approximately HK$18,944,000
(2008: HK$20,324,000) to secure bank overdrafts granted
to the Group (Note 32).

Finance leases
Certain property, plant and equipment are held under finance

leases. Details of these assets are:

17 W3~ BB Bkl (4E)

(a) A E A AR OFE A LA
18,944,00070 ( — FF )\ 4 i W
20,324,0007C) 2 7K A ZEHE 1 Hh K%
MEFIM o R A3% T AL B 2 T
%S 2 WA (BFEE32) ©

(b) MWEME
ETWZE W RS TR
MERA - ZEEEZFFENT

2009 2008

SEBRE BN

HK$°000 HK$°000

¥ T T T

Net book value M I {F B 464 676
Depreciation for the year 44 & 185 224 232




INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 B EE

Intangible assets represent technical know-how acquired by T TR 7 A O O L A R B
the Group and internally generated product development costs. BB A S S BB AN o AR N IR TR A
Movements of the intangible assets during the year are as ZEEEIN
follows:
Internally
generated
product
development
Technical costs
know-how WEBEEA Z Total
B lG m k JE il ] 8 AR Mt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T T T BT T

At 1 January 2008 A — &% /\4F— )] —H - - -
Cost JliA - - -

Accumulated amortisation 2 i # 5 - - -

Net book amount HE 1 {1 — — _

Year ended 31 December 2008

WE T/ E+H =B IEE

Opening net book amount A4/ 18§ (A - - -
Addition %% & 7,810 - 7,810

Closing net book amount A A B T 7,810 - 7,810

At 31 December 2008 J* —FF /)\4E+ - H=1+—H
Cost A 7,810 - 7,810
Accumulated amortisation 2 5|# 5 - - -

Net book amount H 1 7+ {E 7,810 - 7,810

Year ended 31 December 2009
WE FRNES A = HIEEE

Opening net book amount A I 5 {H 7,810 - 7,810
Addition %% - 5,907 5,907
Amortisation #£8H (651) - (651)
Closing net book amount A7 I i V5 (i 7,159 5,907 13,066

At 31 December 2009 JA ~EEAE+ " H=+—H
Cost LA 7,810 5,907 13,717
Accumulated amortisation 2 7 #E#4 (651) - (651)

Net book amount B [ 7 H 7,159 5,907 13,066

Amortisation of HK$651,000 (2008: Nil) is included in HEH651,00000 (B E AR © ) 2 HE5Y
“Depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated income FHATE G UE R R 2 T 4785 S s 1A -

statement.
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19 A —RHBE AR Z
2009 2008
ZERELAE e YA
HK$’000 HK$’000
W Tt ki can aBTH
Share of net asset of an unlisted associate FEAE— [A] IF I il 28 7] 2 B FE 2,849 3,628
Amount due from an associate JEU— ] 2\ 7 38 - 5
Amount due to an associate A — [ 2\ 7 ZE (2) -
2,847 3,633

Movements of share of net asset attributable to the Group for the

year are as follows:

ENASE [ REAS B EE T

2009 2008

ZEFE ZETNE

HK$°000 HK$°000

¥ Tou W T T

Carrying value as at 1 January i*— H — H Z HRHi{H 3,628 3,327
Exchange translation differences [ 5t 2 5 88 (272)
Share of (loss)/profit Al (E548H) Vi I (867) 633

Reclassification to available-for-sale financial assets

FOBT BT AT M AR e - (60)
2,849 3,628

The amounts due from/(to) an associate are unsecured, interest
free and are not repayable within one year. The fair values of
the Group’s amounts due from/(to) an associate approximate to
their carrying amounts of the receivable/payable as at the balance
sheet date.

HEW,” (HEAT) — ] B 24 R 2 3R T 4
R B R R — AR R o AR MR
B, OREA ) — [T 2 Wl R 2
- {E BB i, RS R ER 45 58 H 22 MR T
{EARA -
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 19 R —RBE AR 2SR (4)
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had interest in the following N EENFET_H=+—H» KEH
associate: PR UL R E A w2 A
Place of
incorporation/
Form of registration/
business operation Class of Principal
Name of associate structure kit shares held Effective interest activity
B a4 RESEWEL MBS FARGERN B i FEEH
ARBHRA R AT Incorporated Taiwan Ordinary 23.6% Manufacturing of machineries
Hal) WA o L SRS

The Group’s share of the results of its associate and its aggregated

A [0 A LT 2 ) 2 SR DA I HL AR

assets and liabilities, are as follows: e R AW
2009 2008
. EE
HK$°000 HK$7000
E¥ T BT
Total assets & & A {E 13,009 10,728
Total liabilities £ fif 454 (4,866) (362)
Net asset & i 8,143 10,366
Group’s share of net asset of an associate
A A — [T ) O 2,849 3,628
Revenue YA 2,881 17,135
(Loss)/profit for the year 4F A (518) ¥ F1 (2,552) 3,315
Group’s share of results of an associate for the year
AR SR 1 A — R 8 W) 4F TR SE A (867) 633
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INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20 7] g ) B R 2 RE AR

2009 2008
— 2% %S
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T
Share of net assets of unlisted jointly controlled entities
JREAN I 7 e 2 ) A TR (E - -
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
JRE S ] 92 ) B A 2,640 1,858
Less: Impairment loss on amount due from a jointly controlled entity
¢ MR B[] 42 ) P e 2 R B 1R (1,652) (944)
988 914
Movements of share of net assets attributable to the Group for the AR AS S T 2 A G PSR (A A T
year are as follows:
2009 2008
ZFFIE e = 9N2
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
Carrying value as at 1 January j*— H — H Z HR (& - 1,190
Addition & - 965
Share of losses fE {715 - (556)
Disposal i - (1,599)
Carrying value as at 31 December JA 1 H =1 — H Z MR TH{H - -
The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, JRE i A [ 42 ) BT RO S A R
interest free and are not repayable within one year. The fair B e —AF B R o AR 3L )
value of the Group’s amounts due from jointly controlled entities P2 T T B BT N B 5 W TR
approximate to their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet AR H 2 MR AR

date.



INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20 JAJtRI$Ehl e > s ()

(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had interests in the following N EENEFT A=Z+—H  AEH
jointly controlled entities: HEA DA SR [ e T A
Proportion
Place of of nominal
incorporation/ value of issued
Form of registration/ capital held
business operation Class of by the Group Principal
Name of entity structure dl] A shares held KEMPEO BT activities
Gk RELGHERX iR /RENE  SERGER B B B FEH
Wesi Technology Ltd Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 50% Semi conductor equipment
Fi A i ik distribution
VRS D]
MEEHAERAH Wholly-owned Taiwan Contributed Capital 50% Semi conductor equipment
foreign & EE distribution
enterprises Vg iRatl
2EINERFE
B AHR AT Wholly-owned PRC Contributed Capital 50% Semi conductor equipment
foreign il & distribution
enterprises SRR

ZEIERE
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INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s share of the results of its jointly controlled entities

20

TP 3% [ 2 ) B 8 2 HE 4 ()

A AR I R A JFL S ] 42 o R 2 S AL

and its aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows: HAg e kAT
2009 2008
“ERBNAE U
HK$°000 HK$°000
T BT T
Total assets & i Z{H 2,559 2,446
Total liabilities £ i 454 (5,863) (4,335)
Net liabilities £ ff{F (& (3,304) (1,889)
Group’s share of net assets of jointly controlled entities
A TR R A ) 2 ) T L - -
Revenue for the year 7N IA 5,185 1,052
Loss for the year 4 A 515 (1,556) (2,919)

Group’s share of results of jointly controlled entities for the year

A A A [) £ o B AR AF T SEAR

(556)
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE 21
TO SUBSIDIARIES

i I 2 i) B B B M Ak Bt R 2 W)k I

2009 2008

ZEEBE e S0 B

HKS$°000 HK$’000

T T

Unlisted shares, at cost F£_ T > $ A4 171,266 168,498
Amounts due from subsidiaries U ¥ & 2 7 #3H 223,336 184,538
394,602 353,036
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHM'“%/ NEIF/ ¢l (14,083) (1)

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2009 are set out in Note 39 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2009, the amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and the balances are considered as part

of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2009, the amounts due to subsidiaries are

unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

ALK _FENFET A= HZ
=F TR 2> m R O B ik R B SR
39 -

BEFFNEFETZA=+—H> WELBII?DL
Ji&§ 0 W) 2 K VA T A R G S o T A R
Bt 2 A 7)1“"[%%/\?&%2 il
4% o

‘ﬂ

AR ENET A= H > AR
J& 23 T 2 IR AR A G S B R
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23

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN INVESTEE COMPANY 22 MW —MZBE A FZHIE

2009 2008

ZERELE CZERER )4

HK$°000 HK$’000

L ST i e

Amount due from an investee company FEIL— i 22 % & 23 7] 2 3K IH 3,806 3,806
Less: impairment loss 8 : I (E 518 (3,806) (2,362)
- 1,444

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable within

one year.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority.

AZAE T AT~ S BRI —4E N
(ke

RS Fir 153 Bt

EEA BT HLRAE P A5 B R — B
BRI - A% B2 J A7 AR 145 08 4 O 15 B
E BRI SiE T A5 B B FEEEA T A IR

2009 2008
ZERRIAE TR )\AE
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T iy aPTH
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months
I 1218 T 4% 458 ] 22 0 S0 T 9,655 1,808
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months
S V2R A A5 37 1 2 08 S B I i 6)) (1,012)

Deferred tax assets — net & JEF A & 7E — FH

9,654 796
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 23
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

R SE P 45 e (4)

RN AR A T A B[R] — BB R ik b
2 &5 ERZ IO - EEBHE E KA
HZBEWT

Accelerated
tax Estimated
depreciation tax losses Provisions Total
IEBIRYTE  AEHBUEE R £ 40] A5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$7000 HK$°000
BT T T BT TS
At 1 January 2008
BT NFE—H—H (634) - 2,114 1,480
(Charged)/credited to income statement
W ss & (IR FEA (378) 146 (452) (684)
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
HEENET A= —H R
“EENAFE—H—H (1,012) 146 1,662 796
Credited/(charged) to income statement
REERF A GIER) 804 8,605 (551) 8,858
At 31 December 2009
W_EENFET+_H=+—H (208) 8,751 1,111 9,654

At 31 December 2009, the Group has unused tax losses, for
which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet,
of approximately HK$170,854,000 (2008: HK$148,971,000)
available for offset against future profits. Included in unused
tax losses are losses of approximately HK$78,785,000 (2008:
HK$67,460,000) that will be expired in 1 year to 9 years. Other

tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

ATEENAEFTH =+ —H s AREM
A B B IE 5 48 40 ¥ %7170,854,000 0T
(= Z AR 35 ¥148,971,0000C ) A
FH T HE B R A€ s R o ST 0 3R % 46 s 1R
A AR R N FERR R AL BT E o R
B A B A s 18 P AL A — LA N
W 2 5 15 4 HE 1578,785,0000 ( - F &\
A H567,460,00000) o HoAth B TE S 15
IR i SR A A o



24

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

24 AT B A A R

2009 2008
% R 2
HK$°000 HK$°000
w¥ T T
Unlisted investments, at cost: JF FAT# & » A
— equity securities (note (a),(b)) A # 7+ (HiEE(a) ~ (b)) 29,458 29,458
— overseas investment funds (note (b)) MY GRS (HiEE(D)) 3,889 3,840
33,347 33,298
Less: impairment loss i : Wi {EfE51H (129) (12)
33,218 33,286
Notes: B3
(a)  The unlisted equity securities represented investments in private (a) FEHIRARBSHERAE - LEEWR
entities incorporated in Taiwan, the British Virgin Islands and Hong FHEE XA S, 2 FAANA A2
Kong. & -
(b)  As the available-for-sale financial assets do not have quoted (b) H A ] AR B A R A I A T B
market prices and their fair values cannot be reasonably assessed, 8> HA (8 Mk G BErAl - don] (it
the available-for-sale financial assets are stated at cost less BB A O A T A IR I A
impairment. I -
()  Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the following (c) AT B SR FE T LR RS
currencies:
2009 2008
ZREIE e == YiN: S
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) # 23,113 23,229
Taiwan dollar (“NTD”) ¥ & ¥ 10,105 10,057
33,218 33,286




25

26

INVENTORIES 25 HE
2009 2008
ZERIAE ZERE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Sk o aPTH
Raw materials and consumables JUb Ak B IH FE i 237,506 244,470
Work in progress T 5 i 59,390 58,276
Finished goods $ ./ 173,865 159,198
470,761 461,944

During the year, the Group has made provision for inventory
obsolescence of approximately HK$1,961,000 (2008:
HK$2,814,000).

Included in above were raw materials of approximately
HK$8,513,000 (2008: HK$7,463,000), work in progress of
approximately HK$6,528,000 (2008: HK$2,379,000) and finished
goods of approximately HK$58,089,000 (2008: HK$49,394,000)

which are carried at net realisable value.

s 1 961,00070 ( — & E \AF i K
2,814,0007C) °

bl B A TR A WS 8,513,0000T (&
A i 7,463,0000T )~ FE BT A
s #6,528,0007T ( — & & 4 ¢ K
2,379,00070 ) B B 1 i 4 5 1 58,089,000
TG ( FEENF i %49,394,0000T ) o
BIRA vy 8 B E SR -

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26 B 5 B 3Lt JE e R K

2009 2008

ZERRIAE TR A

HK$°000 HKS$°000

i ST iy o aPTH

Trade receivables & 5 MENUIR K 866,508 843,030
Less: provision for impairment of receivables W : PSR S (A (31,450) (38,656)
835,058 804,374

Other receivables HAthE U AR K 10,374 21,857

Total trade and other receivables & 7 K H Al ME SR 2k 44 %8

845,432 826,231
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26 B 5 Kb REWRK (4)
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to 180 days KEBMEG THE S K FFH30KRE180K
to its trade customers. In addition, for certain customers with long- ZAFHEM - WA e E S RHIBERZ
established relationship, a longer credit period is granted. The HTEFNE  AEMTE TERRESR
ageing analysis of trade receivables net of provision for impairment o BUN 2% 8 5 ME IR 3K (2 0 BR 8(E
at the balance sheet date is as follows: ) NG B 2 HRE AT
2009 2008
ZFFIE RN
HK$°000 HK$°000
EWT L BT T
0 to 30 days 030K 330,346 258,962
31 to 60 days 31 260K 240,535 207,944
61 to 90 days 61 90K 126,468 160,721
Over 90 days 90K ) 137,709 176,747
835,058 804,374

Trade receivables of HK$613,342,000 (2008: HK$595,795,000) are
neither past due nor impaired. Of the remaining HK$253,166,000
(2008: HK$247,235,000), trade receivables of HK$221,716,000
(2008: HK$208,579,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Provision for impairment of receivable
has been provided for the remaining balance of HK$31,450,000
(2008: HK$38,656,000). The ageing analysis of past due but not

impaired trade receivables is as follows:

B b M WOHR 307 %5613,342,00000 (&
T A i 15595,795,00000 ) BE o % 1)
TRARBAE o % 3 1253,166,0007T ( —
FTENE ¢ i #0247,235,00000) o E
5 WE MR 30 15221,716,0000C ( &%
JUAE i 208,579,00000 ) E F ] {H
WE > F%AE S TH B A AT NI HE R
ARG BIYEF A BRI
e 1531,450,00070 ( - F AR - R
38,656,0007C ) 4 JE Wi e 2 sl (B #3 4f o
A A R Ul 2 5 ) T R o R i
Bran s -

2009 2008
ZEFNAE RN
HK$°000 HK$°000
T oo BT

Overdue by: FI|}f :
0 to 30 days 0% 30F 124,475 84,526
31 to 60 days 312 60K 63,188 40,450
61 to 90 days 61 290K 12,848 30,720
Over 90 days 90K A | 21,205 52,883

221,716 208,579
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27

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26
The movements on the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

$ 5 Be T At RE W Bk (A7)
B 5 MBSO (L3 2 BB T

2009 2008

e 2 IR e =92

HK$°000 HK$°000

T BT

At 1 January JA—H—H 38,656 44,032
Provision for impairment of trade receivables & % i e 2 i (EL 475 5 5,675 15,232

Write back of provision for impairment of trade receivables

2 Ty JREMAC R U A ) (12,551) (18,602)
Bad debt written off JEHRA & (330) (2,006)
At 31 December A+~ H=+—H 31,450 38,656

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain

impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group

does not hold any collateral as security.

" 5 J FAt RO 3K b 2 HAR R A (2
RO BHEE -

TRt H O e o i BB 27 B A 58T
FE WSR3k 2 A F{H o A 42 M 45 7 AT
TS S AR A IR -

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 fik&mhTH
2009 2008
SRFIE RN
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
o Aafg W =L
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt W T T L AT i T

As at 31 December ¥ T —H=1+—H

Forward foreign exchange contracts (note (a))

HMAMNES A (HsE@) -
Interest-rate swaps (note (b)) FI*RHiHH (kb)) -

(1,264) 615 -
- - (29)
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 27 fikspIH (&)
Notes =g
(a)  Details of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are (a) AR BAT 2 I AMNE S LRSI R -
as follows:
2009 2008
ZEFLE TEE A
JPY’000 USD’000 JPY’000 USD’000
THH T%x T HIEA T3
Notional principal amounts 44 3§ 4% 4 48 913,153 544 90,196 138
Fixed contracted exchange rates [ 7 £ 4 i 2R
-JPY —H Not applicable 90.50 Not applicable  Not applicable
;i ANTE ANTEH
— HK$ — i Not applicable Not applicable 0.07310 to 9.777 to
B AR 0.07885 12.1635
0.07310% 9.777%
0.07885 12.1635
-USD —%7T 88.40 to 98.18 Not applicable 98.40 to 104.00  Not applicable
88.40%98.18 AW 98.40%104.00 AT
—-RMB — AR 0.07257 to 0.07660 Not applicable Not applicable  Not applicable
0.07257% 0.07660 A AEH AE
Actual exchange rates E{ P FfE %
—JPY —HIH Not applicable 92.44 Not applicable  Not applicable
il H A A
- HK$ — i Not applicable Not applicable 0.0856 10.9358
A3 A A
-USD —%7T 92.44 Not applicable 90.54  Not applicable
A3 A
—RMB — AR 0.07386 Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

(b)

ANl A AN AEH

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest-rate
swaps contracts at 31 December 2008 was HK$200,000,000. At
31 December 2008, fixed interest rates were 2.39% to 2.92% per
annum and the floating rates were with reference to the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate and the London Interbank Offered Rate.

(b)

RoEEANEFTF A=+ —H o MR
BATZ PRI G 2 2R GH S
# #5200,000,0007C ° FA = F EF )\ AR
TH=1T—H > BEFEFEL239H
F2.92)5 » VE WA R 2 % F U AT
[Fi] 2 5 2R 3 R A AR AT W] 2E 47 5L A
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH 28 HUTHGRRH &
Group Company
A A2
2009 2008 2009 2008
TEEBNE SFTNFE ZEFE BTNE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T oo T oo BT T T
Short-term time deposits £ 3 HA /77K 44,551 294,822 - -
Bank balances and cash $R17 %5 ik I Bl 4= 249,303 286,774 337 343
293,854 581,596 337 343

As at 31 December 2009, the weighted average effective interest
rate on time deposits was approximately 1.75% (2008: 4.47%)
per annum. These deposits had an average maturity period of one

year (2008: one year).

AEFFNAET A= H S BT

AR IR 32 B R AR A 3 A0 175 (—
TR 4.47)8) o ZHHFHTHR—
ERE (TR - —4F) o

SHARE CAPITAL 29 A
2009 2008
o SR
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
et B H [1g N A3 8 H T (B
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT Wi
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
A B (LS 0. 1000 2 5 4 i
Authorised: 572 A
At 1 January and 31 December
H—=HA—HEkT_H=1—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: %47 RAUE A -
At 1 January i*—H—H 739,303,964 73,930 736,101,964 73,610
Exercise of share options 17{if il i - - 3,202,000 320
At 31 December A +—H =+—H 739,303,964 73,930 739,303,964 73,930
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 30 May 2005 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will
be expired on 29 May 2015 (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the
Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,

to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2009, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 16,960,000 shares representing 2.29% (2008:
16,960,000 shares representing 2.29%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent

non-executive Director who is a Grantee).

Options may be exercised after one year of its grant date, and
options will vest (i) as to 25% (rounded down to the nearest
whole underlying share) on the first anniversary of its date of
grant, and (ii) as to the remainder on the second anniversary of
its grant date. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of the Company’s share.

30

Ji Ji it

RN FEMRER —FFLAFEDLH =+ A
i PR S R A R . AW
oy 1) B S R A R R R RS o I
B oER-RAERA A JUE E
# 1) o REEFHE > ARFIESE GG
AR B (B A ) B M W] 2 3
)T HEBHE > DIRIEA L R -

=t

NEENFT A= —H o REE
) O A5 S AEL o A A 50 B I R T 0 2 T
1 B H £516,960,000/% - 4 4 2 & 1 3%
HE BT 22.29% (—FF)\F
16,960,000/ > 152.29%) ° fif A £8 A& A
A R e o AR BE T B v AR
W B ARE T 95 S 2 By A 8 A5 Al AR
2N F) AT fA] IR [ 38 AT AR 2 10% © Al
R HEAR N ) B AR S e S AT AT A A
A AT AU — 4 R S T RE A B 2 W
WERT W B 2 O34T A% T 3547 B 3K
H o A5 A A w AT o] IR 1] B 347
B 2 1% o 1) 3 %2 B S B S I WL AT
B R IR > I R T O B 2
138 AR S R AR 2.0.19% A8 (B 15
5,000,0007C LA | - RIJZE 4508 37 3F AT
A ORELFEAT AR 2y 7R A% N 2 S E AT
#HH) FHE -

W IR AT A4 AR — AT IR
JASZ L R E T R A H R E25% 2
W I 1 3 2 S T A AR BRI 0 )
R ()it A R AE M 4E H B S
B N 2 BERCAE o AT A AR EF
MEE > ARGV NI =8 2B ()
i AR 2w B 2 T ()2
FR P F AT TR 2 H R 2 Sk
i 5 K AAm R 2 HH o



30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

30  HEMERETHE A

1o R AT o P B 1 R ELAH B o - 2

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: TTEE B F T
2009 2008
ZERFRIE TERENAF
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise share exercise share
price options price options
b 3 T % i JnHET-24 B
(RR AT #HH
HK$ HK$
#u BT
Beginning of the year -] 0.5613 16,960,000 0.5611 20,362,000
Exercised E47f# - - 0.5600  (3,202,000)
Lapsed £ 253 - - 0.5675 (200,000)
End of the year F-7K 0.5613 16,960,000 0.5613 16,960,000

All share options were exercisable as at 31 December 2008 and

20009.

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2009 have the following

expiry dates and exercise prices:

e

N~ — <

R BE R BT\ R LRI
TZA=ZT—HAPAE -

FTIAE+ ZH =+ — HERITE

WS HE < B0 B R AT e an T

Share options

B ¢ e
Date of expiry Exercise price 2009 2008
F|HIH A1 Number of Number of
share share
HK$ options options
ZFFIE e =92
BT Ji¥ e HEE S8 S I M
21 July 2015 —F—T4FEEH = +—H 0.56 16,232,000 16,232,000
25 September 2015 —~F—TA4FEJLH .+ H 0.59 728,000 728,000
16,960,000 16,960,000




30

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton

Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as

30 BEMERETTE (4

DVE TS R AR D vE — &F 1 B I RE E
BAEHE o A2 mANT

follows:
Date of grant
il H
22 July 2005 26 September 2005
e s EETRAF
tHA=+=H LA =+7~H
Closing share price on date of grant F34% 1 H 112 B die T (E HK$0.56 HK$0.58
#¥0.56 7T H10.587T
Exercise price 17 {#{& HK$0.56 HK$0.59
#H0.567T #H#0.597T

Risk free rate flEJELFG 1| R
Expected volatility T 1R

3.12%-3.22% 3.68%-3.87%
8.36% 4.22%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous one year

before the grant date.

The risk-free interest rate equals to the 12 months fixed deposit
rates as quoted by the bank at valuation date for first 25% share
options and equals to yield of 2-Year Exchange Fund Notes at

valuation date for 75% share options.

The Group did not recognise any expense for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: nil) in relation to share options granted by

the Company in 2005 which became vested in prior year.

TR ) LAAS 2 )R B e 3 iy
A 22 JRR S P o

WRE 25 % I RETT 5 o A JEU B ) S S
RERAT G E H BT+ A 2
FERR R TSR IERET & > R R
TR SR 52 7 TR 4 A1 T 4 8 A Ak 1
Lipal T

A AR 183 I RRAT ] R B T JUAR
T A=+ —HILEERRAAR R
FE AL IR 2 BB S (FEFN
GO 9)iPRES T



31 RESERVES 31 filifh

(a) Group - other reserves (a)  ACH: [ — i £k i
Capital Contributed Special Share
redemption ~ surplus reserve option
Share  reserve (Note(a)) (Note (b)) Translation  reserve
Group premium Ak EHBE RUEE  reserve i3 Total
AEM BOHgf  JREGE  (WRE) (WRE®b) JMERHE  BERE At

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
BT BN T BT BT BN BRI T

Balance at | January 2008 1~ %%\~ — H 2 &8k 88,073 1610 26624 5008  (2640) 940 119615
Currency translation differences B A - - - - (5,457) - (5,457)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options T EEREBIERA TR Y 1473 - - - - (150 1323
Share options lapsed during the year 4 [ £ KA it - - - - - o) L)

Balance at 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
WEZENEFZA =T —HEZZZNE—A—H 2 8k 89,546 1610 26624 5008 (8,097) 781 11547
Currency translation differences £ 11 5.2 & - - - - 6568 6,568

Balance at 31 December 2009 R ~ZFZUE+ A = F—A 288 89,546 1610 26,624 5008 (1,529) 781 122,040

(b) Company — Reserves (b) AL w| -k
Capital Contributed Share
redemption surplus option
Share reserve  (Note (a)) reserve Retained
Company premium BA  EARE J#lt  earnings Total
AT Bt EEEE (W) WM REEAM it

HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTr  ENTT BT T BRTR ERTx

Balance at 1 January 2008 i = %% /\F—H—H 2 5l 88,073 1,610 77,053 940 120797 289673
Profit for the year 4F /iy - - - - 15,875 15875
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options

BT (AT e 1473 - - (150) 150 1473
Share options lapsed during the year 4F [ £ KA it - - - o) 9 -
2007 final dividend ~FE-EAERBIE - - - - (18483)  (18483)
2008 interim dividend ~ %%\ RIS - - - - (11,090)  (11,090)

Balance at 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
RN A =T —ARZEZ N~ —H 2 & 89,546 1,610 77,253 781 108,258 277,448
Profit for the year 4 /i - - - - 28,954 28,954

Balance at 31 December 2009 R=ZZNEF A= F—HZER 89,546 1,610 71253 781 137212 306,402
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32

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Company - Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Contributed surplus of the Company arose from a group
reorganisation on 26 June 1990. The balance represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued under a scheme of arrangement (the “Scheme™)
and the consolidated shareholders’ funds of Wong’s Kong
King Holdings Limited as at 26 June 1990 acquired by the
Company under the Scheme. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is

available for distribution to the shareholders.

The special reserve is the amount of share premium of the

Group attributable to subsidiaries.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

31 fEfl ()
(b) AL W — Gkl (4F)
Bk -

(@ RN EHEAH ZHARHEM
HAHEE Z AN AV TR - 3
SEBERIE A AR BR F B P ([
FH# J) 2 CBEAT M4 A (B B AR 2
R %t B — UILE AR N A
TN H OO R AR A R
RAEZERBARE G2 228 - R
A FVE— LN Al (1
W) o A BRI BT IR T BOR o

(b) R L5 A 4 PR 2 B A A 2 1
e 4 A8 2 I

32 WMITHEREX

2009 2008
“ERFNE e < 9ANC2
HK$°000 HK$°000
#HT T BT
Bank overdraft, secured 5 &SR 745 % 3,553 10,496
Trust receipts loans, secured A f&#1{5 FEUSIE B3R 219,398 140,215
Other bank borrowings, unsecured H A MEHEHER1 T £ 182,689 509,240
405,640 659,951
The bank borrowings and overdrafts are repayable as follows: SRAT 5 s 4 A UfE R
2009 2008
“EENE CRFINEE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
i T T
Within one year —4FA 405,640 641,951
Between one to two years —4F 2 fi4F - 18,000
Wholly repayable within five years T.4F: [kl RS {& 12 405,640 659,951
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities
W A B A NS EOR (405,640) (641,951)
Amounts due after one year —4-1% FI| 2 FIH - 18,000




32

BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONTINUED)
The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings and

overdrafts are as follows:

32 BATHERIEX (41)
WATAE BB 2 H BRI R

2009 2008

ZEENAE ZEREINAE

Bank overdraft #1741 3 6.75% 6.75%
Trust receipts loan and other bank borrowings 15 i EICHE B3k S HAERT T £ 1.55% 2.79%

Bank overdrafts are secured by freehold land and buildings with
the total net book values of approximately HK$18,944,000 (2008:
HK$20,324,000) (Note 17).

Trust receipt loans are secured by inventory of HK$219,398,000
(2008: HK$134,967,000).

The Group’s bank borrowings and overdrafts are denominated in

the following currencies (amounts in original currency):

SRAT M DLHE T OV AR R A T
18,944,00000 ( — & & J\4F : i ¥
20,324,0007T ) Z 7K A SEHE -+ Hh R p A
HEHH (BFF5ELT7) o

& RT3 B K DA 5219,398,00000 ( —
FT)AE - #%134,967,00000) 2 &
FEAA -

AR SRAT 5 8 B3 3T # AR B W R
{8 (MUFA B W 250 -

2009 2008

“RBNIE ZREB A

°000 ’000

T Tt

HKD 47,118 462,436
RMB A R 35,000 8,700
JPY HE 172,349 57,614
USD FJC 38,715 1,642
SGD s i #s 642 1,955




33  OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

33 mEMERE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
B AL 65 1 5k B AR 85 A sk B
2009 2008 2009 2008
SRPAE CEEAFE CRBAE CEEAE
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T T T
Amounts payable under finance leases
il AH B IE T A ROA
Within one year —4F K] 168 207 153 187
Between one to two years — 4 2 W 4F 330 183 318 163
Between two to five years /4 % L4 - 327 - 321
498 717 471 671
Less: Future finance charges ¥k : H & il &% 27 (46) - -
Present value of lease obligations FHl & &1 2 Bi(H 471 671 471 671
Less: Amount due for settlement within
one year shown under current liabilities
W BB B — 4R R B A5 < F0R (153) (187)
Amount due to for settlement after one year
AR B S5 TE 2 FOH 318 484

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the

lessor’s charge over the leased assets (Note 17).

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant and
equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is 2 years.
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the average effective
borrowing rate was 3.93% per annum (2008: 3.93% per annum).
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

A B2 1 2l B R T LA A SO
AR E 2 RS OR (B EL7) -

AL 2 BOR T RS B E A
W~ WE B o SFITRE R A W
HFoWMBEEFEZNET_H=+—HIE
A RE ST A E R A SRR 2 5 AT 3,93 )8
(T )AE  FB3.93H) « FIRBH
) HAET A8 o 0 A FR B 2 4 ] i o Ok
HESEAT » A% 4 [ 51 40 sk ok AR P 4 5 kRT
SEAT A HE -
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34

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s finance lease obligations were denominated in the

33 RhEMERYEE)
AKE T 2 BB R AR YE T4 DA N BT

following currencies: H :
2009 2008
“BEALE I
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T BT T
SGD Hi i 469 643
THB %8k 2 28
471 671
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 34 BREAIRE
2009 2008
“EEAL SEENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
#W T BT
Retirement benefits obligations & /A4 I 18
— Pension plans (Note (a)) BAGFHH] (Ff5E(a)) 344 2,203
— Defined benefits plans (Note (b)) & %8 A A 5T H (51 (b)) 449 415
793 2,618
Notes (i
(a)  Balance represented pension provision in relation to employees in (a) AEERIRELHAME B A B2 BIRGE -
Japan.
(b)  The Group operates defined benefit plans for qualifying employees (b)  AEE LB EHIEA A2 & EKIR
of its subsidiaries in Taiwan. The schemes are administrated by B 8 B R R EE ) o 3 AR ST E

independent trustees with their assets held separately from those
of the Group. Under the plans, the employees are entitled to a lump
sum benefit equal to certain percentage of final salary on attainment
of a retirement age of 55. No other post-retirement benefits are

provided.

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31
December 2009 by a Taiwan qualified actuary. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost
and past service cost were measured using the projected unit credit

method.

HB 7 A5 RE N AT . H R B AR AR
ZEES WA o RIEZ SRR
B M A — S O R S AR IS5
BIREE R B FF G2 — I -
A MR BEH AR RAZ R -

wt B 2 oAl RS A (B E A
AR AR S 2 BUE TS b & 8 A
B R ENEF A=
7 o BAEE FURIE 2 BUE - A 5
RS AR R A A s AR 3 4R T
TR AL AL T



34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 34 Bk MR IE (45)

Notes (Continued) [ 5 (4%)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#8%)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect A ORI e e R A BY bl o AR A A
of these defined benefits plans are as follows: FlErd > &5EUF
2009 2008
SEERN A
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T T T
Current service cost % IR %5 i 4 255 253
Interest cost FILE AR 336 345
Expected loss on plan assets T E TR (179) (193)
Amortisation of net transitional obligations % i K ¥ 1 46 2 & 15 14
Amortisation of gain on defined benefits plans & ZAME R A 5T EUL #5 2 S 115 64
Amortisation of past service cost VAR BLAS 2 $E£F 153 152
695 635
The charge for the year has been included in employee benefit AAEEA AR TS AR B AR F B
expense. Al o
The actual loss on plan assets was approximately HK$104,000 T B A T R A A 5 s 1 104,000
(2008: HK$138,000). JC (2 Z AR ¢ #%5138,0000T) ©
The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial KA R 2 TR
valuations were as follows:
2009 2008
ZEZFAE TEE N
Discount rate i 5% 2.5% 2.5%
Expected return on plan assets # 1% % i 2 T 1) 2.5% 2.5%

Expected rate of salary increases T8 T 5B g i 3.5% 3.5%
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Notes (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from

the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement

34 BIRTEFIRE ()

BiF T (A2)

by (#)

B 7 4 11 At L AR OB P A A s
mEE O A G I EE MRS

plans is as follows: IR -
2009 2008
“EFIAE e =2 A
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations
EL B T B R R IS 2 BL(E (15,109) (13,331)
Fair value of plan assets 7 &% & 2 /A7 (H 7,907 6,839
Deficit f518 (7,202) (6,492)
Net actuarial losses not recognised HMERR NG S e T 4 4,355 3,603
Past service cost not recognised AHERR 2 LATEARES A 2,206 2,275
Net transitional obligations not recognised A< RS 2 48 i A4 1 45 192 199
Net liabilities arising from defined benefit obligation
E R AR R e 2R 2 BT A (449) (415)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

AN A J3 S B AL R AR I B 2 5 )

in the current year were as follows: LI

2009 2008

e e

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T T
Opening defined benefit obligation 4F-# & #H it 2A FI 7K 5 (13,331) (11,906)
Current service cost ¥ IR Bl A (255) (253)
Interest cost F 5 B (336) (345)
Actuarial losses #5518 (650) (1,246)

Exchange differences on foreign plans 3 #h it ] 2 455 2= % (537) 419
Closing defined benefit obligation 4F-JE& & BA AR F K 5 (15,109) (13,331)
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Notes (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year

were as follows:

34 BT FIRE ()
WfsE (4)

by  (#H)

AR BRI BV E NP2 BB INT

2009 2008

“ERNAE e A%

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T T

Opening fair value of plan assets “F- #1713 &5 2 2AFE 6,839 6,311

Expected return on plan assets 71 #1 & & 2 FHFH 1 # 179 193
Actuarial gains KT Iz (80) (55)
Exchange differences on foreign plans 3 4MH#1 2 #3258 274 (222)
Contributions from the employer {i& 1=K 695 612
Closing fair value of plan assets FJEF1 ] & & 2 AF-(EH 7,907 6,839

The history of experience adjustments is as follows: ERaRE ik 3/ S

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

FENE CFENF CFFLE CFENF CEERE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
WWTE  WNTE  BWTE BETE BT

Present value of defined benefit obligation
SE FEBETAR RIS 2 BUE
Fair value of plan assets 711 & 7 2 /AF-(E

15109  (13331)  (11.906)  (11,886)  (11461)
7,907 6,839 6311 6,093 5,719

Deficit 515

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
Al A AR B

Experience adjustment on plan assets
T 2 AR R

(7,202) (6,492) (5,595) (5,793) (5,742)

The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$495,000 (2008:
HK$477,000) to the defined benefit plans during the next financial

year.

A B2 [ TE AR T — B B0AE kg AR A
AR O 1 495,00000 (ZFE
JUAE {5 ¥8477,00000) °



35 TRADE, BILL AND OTHER PAYABLES 35 5 MEAFIREK - WE A SR B M b
i+ Rk
Group Company
AL Y /A

2009 2008 2009 2008

ZERBNE FTNE ZFFE CFENE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

W T BT T W T BT T

Trade payables & 2 - HR 3K 418,095 396,502 - -

Bill payables JEf+f 224 83,211 43,803 - -

501,306 440,305 - -

Accruals and other payables ME=]# F K H At BEA B2 185,234 221,561 628 2,247

686,540 661,866 628 2,247

The following is an aging analysis of trade and bill payables at DL £ 5 5 JRE AT Bk B I AT SR8 A 5 04
the balance sheet date: H Z WREE 4T

2009 2008

ZERRIE ZRFINE

HK$°000 HK$’000

L i T T

0 to 30 days 030K 335,627 237,188

31 to 60 days 31 260K 107,109 95,382

61 to 90 days 61 90K 32,570 67,208

Over 90 days 90K A I 26,000 40,527

501,306 440,305




36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36 HfBl&RERME

STATEMENT
(a) Cash generated from operations: (a) KOEETEARE
2009 2008
ZFFIE RN
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
(Loss)/profit before income tax B AITHBLAT (k518 % F (24,377) 120,081
Adjustments for: 8 FH%¢ 51414 :
— Finance costs il & i 4% 8,290 27,530
— Interest income F S i i (3,856) (16,272)
— Dividends income from available-for-sale financial assets
TR A e AR A (2,981) (382)
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
UE B Y Gk 59,444 63,828
— Amortisation of land use rights = {5 F REHE 361 437
— Amortisation of intangible asset JEFE & /2 &4 651 -
— Provision for allowance for inventories 17 & 13 #§ 1,961 2,814
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
WY - RS KA R 569 1,737
— Share of results of associates T {5 2\ 7] SE 48 867 (633)
— Share of results of jointly controlled entities
o Ao S ) 2 ) 2 2 4R - 556
— Write-back of impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other receivables
R By S HL AR IR K E WERE 2 B {E R (6,876) (3,370)
— Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
YIZE ~ S B 2 BB R 1 1,644 -
— Gain on disposal of joint controlled entities
Hh A T 42 o R W - (1,646)
— Write-back of impairment loss on club
memberships and debentures
$85 1) g T A I iR 2 BUE R 1R (2,300) -
— Impairment loss on amount due from a jointly controlled entity
B s — [ 3 [ 42 o B R k(s 1R 708 944
— Impairment loss on amount due from an investee company
JRE W — ] 2 B 4 W) R 2 s 1R 1,444 -
— Net fair value loss/(gains) on financial derivatives
ERTE THEE () 2 A7 FHE 1,850 (586)
— Impairment loss on available for sales financial assets
At R BRI 1R 117 -
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ #& 5 &) 2 52 %8¢ 3,438 -
Changes in working capital: %8 & 4 585 40,954 195,038
— (Increase)/decrease in inventories 775 (B4 H11) /> (10,778) 122,778
— (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
B 5 BIADBENIRR (g m) b (12,325) 227,889
— Increase in deposits and prepayments %4 5 TE 4+ 2 JE 38 i (11,812) (18,515)
— (Decrease)/increase in retirement benefit obligations
IRIRAR AR (WD), Hhn (1,825) 375
— Increase/(decrease) in trade, bill and other payables
5 AT IR ~ AT S48 R A B AR SR g o~ (D) 24,674 (253,149)

Cash generated from operations &8/ 275 & AL B 4 28,888 274,416




36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

36

o OF B 4 U B R B R (A

(b) REEREXRS  HEWE - WG
P& PR NIRRT

2009 2008
ZEFIAE ZET)NE
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T T T
Net book amount HfZ 1 {% {E 4,504 3,503
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEYSE - WS KB 2 iR (569) (1,737)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
HAEYSE ~ RS KB 2 TS E0H 3,935 1,766
37 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37 REMBERE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

in respect of the rented premises which fall due are as follows:

REEEH > AEEBA T R ENE
JHT 2 &Y ¥ 2 KA R 4 2 19
P2 ARSEUF

2009 2008
“ERIE ZRE N

HK$°000 HK$’000

T e S BT

Within one year —4F A 13,484 22,164
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5% — % %% TL4F (LG H R 4F) 29,192 13,358
Over five years il F4F - 1,574

42,676 37,096
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38
Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, or directors or officers of the Company and

its subsidiaries.

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Senta Wong.

(a) During the year, the Group has entered into the following

BN 122 5

B 22 45 A 4 ) B L e R Y
73— 7 B — 7 Z B R R R

PR E R

N EHE > SIRALE K

HM @~ F 2 HEERHBAR -

AR T b DR ST A e A

(a) MAFEE > AREM

W BELEL N

transactions with its related parties: WAT IR G -
For the year ended Amounts due from
31 December (to) related parties
wE JRE W (WA )
TZAZ+T—HIEAE B3N Lk
2009 2008 2009 2008
CEBHAE TTNFE ZFFE B TNE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T T oo BT T
Trade sales (note i and iv) B 5 8 & (K 5ti fiv) 2,504 494 5 46
Ticketing and touring income (note i and iv)
S5 B e TR (BT Miv) 36 736 67 57
Ticketing and touring income (note ii and iv)
SR KRR (BT M) 11 284 37 22
Ticketing and touring income (note iii and iv)
SRS B iR aR (B i Kiv) 29 93 - -
Insurance expense (note iii and iv)
PR B S (B i Miv) 6,854 8,557 (200) (157)
Rental expense (note i and iv)
AL <5 B 3 (B3 Miv) 290 290 - -
Current account due from related parties (note i)
o P 8 N 2 ST (f ) - - 1,370 1,384
Provision for bad debt (note i) SEHRIE M (FH ki) - - (1,311) (1,311)
Current account due to related parties (note i and iv)
JREAST B N - 2 R (B3 M) - - (3,402) (3,393)

Notes:

i) Related parties are Mr. Senta Wong, his close family members
and companies of which Mr. Senta Wong and his close family

members are directors.

(i)  Related parties are Mr. John Ho or Mr. Edward Tsui and their

close family members.

(iii)  Related party is a company of which Mr. Arthur Lok,
a director of a subsidiary of the Group in Taiwan, is a

director.

(iv)  The prices of the above transactions were determined with

reference to market prices for similar transactions.

B 3L

) BPEANLIYERMEL - HEBRN A
A I B e R KRB 2

R

() BN T # e Ak e R B A S A
PV E 2 FIRM A »

(i) BN LIS R AL B BN E A
Rl H I B 2 N

(v) ALz 5 2 %2 Bz 5 2l
Ly fEAs i o o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 38

(b) Key management remuneration

(b)

The remuneration of key management during the year was

BN 225 (4H)
FHREHMABZMSE
FEEEIABRENZ M

as follows:
2009 2008
e “EF N
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T i e
Salaries, wages, commission and allowances i ~ T & ~ {H 4 &R 22,864 27,846
Post-employment benefits #2 /A4 F1 948 1,014
23,812 28,860

The remuneration of key management is determined by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance

of individuals and market trends.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 are as

39 FEMEA S
ATEENFET A=+ —H > EEH

FEATHN B 2 P % #2187l 2 B K i
YriE B HME B g HE

follows: & A FREE T
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held R/ operation CHIMA/ AU Principal activities
RAAH ielmEN R g ] eV oS Bkl ) EEEH
Direct subsidiary B £ M4 ]
Asean Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong USDI 100 Investment holding
Tk Islands i 1 REfR
SRETARE
Brilliant Elite Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS1 100 Investment holding
SELEEREREARA ik Fik Fik L RERR
Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited* Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD362,888,940 6744 Investment holding and trading
REBERLARA HiEn Gl a8 HaH362888 94070 IOV CUL e
Wong’s Kong King Holdings Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$47,687,809 100 Investment holding
EREREMARA HEN #ik Bk 847,687,809 b



39

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

39 EEERRE A Al ()

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held ALl AV operation ek ASEMIER  Principal activities
ek BrEmOE R HEns LE Ve BAtiR %) — EEEH
Indirect subsidiary FI# B4 A
Brilliant International Limited® Ordinary Bermuda PRC USDI12,000 100 Investment holding
HEl AR i 12,0003%7C bl
Dongguan Wong's Kong King Contributed capital  PRC PRC HKS$790,114,880 100 Manufacturing and
Electronics Co., Limited"* g il g EHE790,114,8807C selling of electrical
REERERETARAA" and electronic products
RERHEERRETER
TR AR RREA R Contributed capital  PRC PRC HK$10.820,000 100 Manufacturing of film products
A ol il 410,820,007 RiEdEEn
Dongguan Nissin Plastic Products Contributed capital PRC PRC HKS69,507 444 100 Manufacturing of plastic
Limited"* i3y Gilct il 169,507 444 products
FERFEBR AR HERBER
Grace Year Enterprises Limited Ordinary Hong Kong PRC HK$?2 100 Trading and distribution of
[ ERRAT ik i ikt L plastic products
BB E R
Headway Holdings Limited® Ordinary Samoa Taiwan USD2,600,000 6744 Trading and investment holding
ERERARAR HiE D ] 2600000%7C U) G
Hiking International Company Limited  Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$7,800,000 5463 Investment holding and provision
RERBRAFRAR HEk Fi Fi i#7.800,0007¢ for instalation services
BB R R £ R
Hiking Technology (Suzhou) Contributed capital  PRC PRC USD1,000,000 5463 Design, producing and testing
Company Limited"* i34 Gilt1 ket 1,000,000 T of electronic components
BERHL (BOM) A RA R it EERWHE Tl
Hong Kong Taiwan Kong King Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$26,210,000 6744 Trading and distribution of
FlEAEERARA Tk i Fik 126,210,007 industrial products
R REHIRER
Nissin Co., Limited Ordinary British Virgin PRC USD4,500,001 100 Investment holding and trading
Tl Islands il 4,300,001 and distribution of plastic
RREETHE products

REnk BBERER
R
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

39 LR A Al ()

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held Gl AV operation CHTMA/ ASEMIER  Principal activities
kA O R HEns HAE AT BAt %) EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued) ML)
Speady Snatch Company Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 100 Investment holding
EHARAA Eiak Fik Fi o fERR
WKK America (Holdings) Inc.’ Ordinary United State United State USD45,000 100 Marketing
Tk of America of America 4500057 5 e
#H #H
WKK Asia Pacific Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong USDI1 100 Investment holding
FRBRRHARAE Tk Islands i %7 acEie
SRR
WKK China Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 Trading, distribution and
TREETEAR AR Ttk ik Eil 500,000 installation of turnkey
production facilities
Bh - SR EEEER
Mk R
WKK Distribution Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
FREEAHARAA Hi Fi it 1,000,007 e
WKK Electronic Equipment Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100 Trading and distribution
ERERETRIARAT T Fik il o B s
WKK Engineering Service Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2,000 100 Provision of engineering services
ERERRBEBREARLT Eiak Fil ik 82,0007 TREBRE
WKK Japan Limited* Ordinary Japan Japan JPY50,000,000 100 Marketing
HEl HES ik 50,000,000 H A TisiihE
Wong’s Kong King (Singapore) Ordinary Sinagpore Singapore SGD1,000,000 100 Trading and distribution in
Pte. Limited* Tk i bl 11,000,0007C electronics components and

printed circuit boards and

other related products
ERR PG

Kk G R RAH
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

39 EEERRE A Al ()

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held i/ operation gk AR Principal activities
W4 MO R BEns HAEAE BAts %) — EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued) AN 4\ E (%)
WKK PCB Trading Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 100 Trading and distribution
IRBEERREAFRAD Tk Fil Fi o Uyes:
WKK Technology Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 Manufacturing and selling of
ITREERHEARAR L ik ik E1500,0007 electrical and electronic
products
RERHETRRETEN
WKK (Thailand) Limited* Ordinary Thailand Thailand Common 100 Trading and distribution
Tk & #E shares of industrial products
THB2450,000 B REH RN
ik
— 552,450,000
Preference shares
THB2,550,000
L
—%5£2.550,000
WKK Travel Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,600,000 100 Travel ticketing
FRERREARAA Tk it Fik 674,600,000 7C RIS
Won King Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS! 100 Investment holding
TR A T Fik Bk lstiab Rtk
SRR A Contributed capital  PRC PRC 196,000,000 100 Investment holding
i o i 6,000,000 ¢ v
3 Kings Holding Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$17,575,000 7824 Manufacturing, general trading
SEEEARAA ik i Hik 117,575,000 and hospital management
#E —BEAAREER
BRE TR L ERAAY Contributed capital PRC PRC USD1,500,000 6744 Development and consultation of
i3 t il 1,500,000% T electronic technology
B TR LR
R ER A RA R Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD62,370,000 5732 Manufacturing of industrial
Lk il EL Hak6.370,0000 products
BETERN
TRIELEHRIERA A Contributed capital PRC PRC HKS6,000,000 100 Trading and distrbution in printed
g i i #16,000,0007C circuit boards and

semi-conductors equipment
AIRIER R R
i AR
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

39 FEMBARGEE (F)

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held 3. operation CRIRE/ ASMER  Principal activities
R BEROEN RS ] TR AT R EREH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued) FIZ & 4\ el (%)
TRIEERHEHRIDERAT®  Contributed capital - PRC PRC HK$10,000,000 100 Trading and distribution in
i3} Giltl Uil 510,000,000 printed circuit boards and
semi-conductors equipment
ENAI BB A SRR
BHREH
FREEE A ERAR" Contributed capital  PRC PRC USD880,000 100 Trading and distribution in
RS i i 880,000% T printed circuit boards and
semi-conductors equipment
EI B B R
85 RAH
TRIEE I FGEBREFRAT®  Contributed capital - PRC PRC USD310,000 100 Provision of maintenance and
i3 Gt ikt 310,000 after sales services

PRC law.

Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Company registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises under

Company registered as cooperative joint venture under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting

at the end of the year or any time during the year.

PRALAROE B et e
AR o B ik e M A O A2 o

MO b Bk R EE R B B E L
A o

e o1 e 5% R K A B R 2 B A 2

SR A S 2 A
EHEERELWBAA - HERR
28 G 25 70 22 3 6 0 2 R
WL -

W JE 2 ) S A A B P A ] B ] AR A
A A8 0 A PR RS A O






	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	五年財務概要
	董事及高層管理人員個人資料
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告書
	合併利潤表
	合併資產負債表
	資產負債表
	合併綜合收益表
	合併權益變動表
	合併現金流量報表
	合併財務報表附註
	封底

